SUGA|

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEERKREARLRXSF

Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (R B R EEMA L 2ER D A)




Contents
B &%

Corporate Information ) Consolidated Income Statement 57
ATER mEWak

Financial Highlights 4 Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 58
MEHE FE2EBAR

Chairman’s Statement 9 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 59
FE®/RE REEa®BR

Management Discussion and Analysis 15 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 60
EEEHAWR DN REeRERER

Directors and Senior Management Profiles 23 Notes to the Financial Statements 62
EEREREBAERER i 5

Corporate Governance Report i inancial Summary 164
TEERESE b 2

Report of the Directors

ExgRsE

Independent Auditor’s Report

BB ER &

Balance Sheets

EEEER

Corporate Objective
TERE

To become the leading and
most reputable and reliable
EMS (Electronics Manufacturing
Services) provider in Asia.
KARMNRMEREHNET
SERGE

Mission Statement
FEfFa

We contribute to the advancement of society by providing people with quality products and

employing advanced technology, with protecting the environment always in mind. We hire and
nurture professionals and, together, we march towards our goals in pace with time. Putting
customers first, we provide them with the best products and services, assuring win-win results.
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Financial Highlights
B2

2012
HK$'000
—E-——F
FET
OPERATING RESULTS R4
For the year ended 31 March i Z= A =+—HILFE
Revenue Wz 1,241,997
Gross profit EF 165,277
Operating profit &% % % ) 99,962
Profit attributable to owners of the Company N2 & ffr & & &5 i F 93,252
Farnings per share — Basic (HK cents) &% & F| — & A& (L) 34.26
Interim dividend, paid, per ordinary share (HK cents) &A% & A% 2 EIR 8. (1) 7.0
Final dividend, proposed, per ordinary share (HK cents) &A% & i A% 8 R R BAR 2. (&A1) 10.0
Special dividend, proposed, per ordinary share (HK cents) &A% & @A #R i BIAL B (GEAl) -
FINANCIAL POSITION ###k 5%
As at 31 March R=A=+—H
Total equity 54258 437,206
Net current assets i 8) & &/ FE 299,884
Net cash IR & /%58 112,120
Capital expenditure & A f &2 15,821
Net assets value per share (HK cents) B EERE (B{L) 160.6
FINANCIAL RATIOS 3§tk =&
Current ratio R &)t & 2.46
Debt to equity ratio & & L & 7.3%
Inventory turnover days 17 & 188 H €1 53
Debtors turnover days f& U BR Z A& B 38
Return on average equity F¥J & AN [B] 3R & 22.2%

2011
HK$'000
—T—%F

TET

1,191,058
162,518
101,816

90,438
33.51
5.0

8.0

8.0

401,958
287,551
114,895
18,078
147.9

2.44
11.5%
49

36
24.7%
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REVENUE BY PRODUCT TYPE Uz

Financial Highlights
B isimE

ZEmBR

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—HLFE

Electronic products & T 54
Moulds and plastic products £ £ & ¥8 BB &

Total 485t

2012 2011 % Change
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=F —T——%F gEFEH
FHERT THBT
1,193,273 1,137,249 4.93%
48,724 53,809 -9.45%
1,241,997 1,191,058 4.28%

REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT Wz 1z it & 7 #7

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—HLFE

The United States of America S5

United Kingdom 2

Japan B 7K

PRC (including Hong Kong) B (B 45 & #)
Australia &M

Others E At

Total 4851

2012 2011 % Change
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-CfF _”——¢ 2HHOL
404,624 419,438 -3.53%
301,611 286,001 5.46%
256,426 209,312 22.51%
116,516 96,495 20.75%
42,149 94,258 -55.28%
120,671 85,554 41.05%
1,241,997 1,191,058 4.28%

2012 BT

3.9% Moulds and plastic products
AR IBRBE M

96.1% Electronic products
BETE®

201 REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT
B E DT

9.38% PRC (including Hong Kong)
P E(BIEEE)

3.39% Australia 9.72% Others

BN

20.65% Japan
EEN

24.28% United Kingdom
HE

32.58% The United
States of America

ey
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Production Facility

HUIZHOU PLANTS
Gross Floor Area : 110,000 sq.ft.
Products : Moulds and Plastic Products

=M =
EEMBE : 110,000 FAR
Em:BEAREBER

XI XIANG PLANTS
Gross Floor Area : 120,000 sq.ft.
Products : Electronic Products

78 48 1% =
FEEMEE : 120,000 FAR
Em:EFEM
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Production Facility

BUJI PLANTS
Gross Floor Area : 520,000 sq.ft.
Products : Electronic Products

HERE
EEME - 520,000 F AR
ER:EFEmM
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On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual results
of Suga International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“SUGA” or the “Group”) for the fiscal year ended 31
March 2012 (“FY2011/12").

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Over the past year, the business environment has proven to be
highly difficult for manufacturing companies as a whole, with many
economies around the world continuing to experience volatility.
Nevertheless, we were able to sustain turnover and net profit
growth, outpacing the market by leveraging a sound strategy
that emphasized developing a balanced yet diversified product
portfolio. The Group recorded turnover of approximately HK$1,242.0
million, a modest increase of 4.3% from HK$1,191.1 million last
year. Gross profit reached HK$165.3 million (FY2010/11: HK$162.5
million). Although production cost, especially labor cost, increased
noticeably, we implemented effective control measures, including
greater automation to manage costs. Consequently, gross profit
margin stood at 13.3% (FY2010/11: 13.6%). The Group realised
profit attributable to shareholders of HK$93.3 million, up 3.1% year-
on-year (FY2010/11: HK$90.4 million). Net profit margin was 7.5%
(FY2010/11: 7.6%) and basic earnings per share was HK34.26 cents
(FY2010/11: HK 33.51 cents).

DIVIDENDS

The Directors have recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK10.0 cents per share (FY2010/11: HK8.0 cents per share) to
shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Shareholders of
the Company on 10 August 2012. Together with an interim dividend
of HK7.0 cents per share already paid, total dividend for the year
will amount to HK17.0 cents per share (FY2010/11: HK21.0 cents per
share, including a special dividend of HK8.0 cents per share). Subject
to approval by shareholders at the 2012 Annual General Meeting, the
proposed final dividend is to be paid on or before 17 August 2012.
The dividend represents 49.7% of the net profit of the Group for the
fiscal year.

b

Chairman’s Statement
FERE

AANERREFE  MARZEEEREER
RAB(TARRAE) REWBAR (SRIMEE]
K AEEBE_T-——_F=A=+—HIt
PBREE(-F——/~Z—FHBEFEDH

XERE

BE—F RREEHESEEENBEER
REIFFHRE - BT RONESEBRD
FNDRIFER  ETESARNETRABETEA
L EMERBEEMBERE  SRMANKR
BABBEE - BEFER - NEBEXHEED
#91,242,000,0007% 7T » £t 2 & #91,191,100,0007%
JLE £ F+4.3% © FE F £9165,300,0007%8 7T (=
T,/ ——FHBRFE 1625000005 7T) °
BAEERA  LERSLTIRAKEAS 2
B ERRIESIEEINES BB AR
E+0RW SENEERFE133% (ZZT—F
S ——EHBEE : 13.6%) AR E1G % F#
EFRHE EF3.1%%E93,300,0008 T (Z T —=
J/——E B BEE © 90,400,000 7T) © 4 A K
B1S% (ZE—F/ ——FHHREE 1 76%) °
BREARBF AM26EBWN(ZE—F/ ——F
FREE : 335181) -

i B
EEEFRMABREGREAA10.0EWL (=
-2/ ——FHPREE  BRLBR0E
W F=—F——FNAT+BHRIEARTRER
AR ER - @ FF AR E M+ Bk 8 F7.0%8
il 2EREEEAERI70EIL(ZE—2/
——FHHFE  BFR21.08(1 - BEERIK
BEREN) - FRER-_FT—_FRRA
FREH AR BRORBREBZR =T —=
FNATEBHZANRS - REEATBREE
SEAEFE49.7% o

Annual Report 2011/125 %



10

“Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Electronic products

The electronic products segment generated sales of HK$1,193.3
million, up 4.9% from HK$1,137.2 million last year, accounting for
96.1% of the Group’s total sales. We were able to maintain healthy
income even in the face of a sluggish macro economy in the second
half of 2011, during which the development of many sectors was
hindered, consumer confidence eroded significantly, and some of our
partners adopted a more conservative approach that led to a delay
in new project launches. Nevertheless, owing to a broad customer
base, product variety, and more specifically, a balanced portfolio of
niche products, this combination proved effective at enabling us to
weather the difficult conditions and realise modest business growth.

Among all of the products in the electronic products segment,
general consumer electronics, which include telecommunication
devices, recorded the strongest growth. This corresponded with a
new telecommunications device that we launched for a Japanese
customer, which superseded an older model, and the transition had
progressed well. Orders for our other general consumer electronic
products also increased, with customers starting to replenish
inventory to meet market demand.

Interactive educational products and professional audio equipment
maintained stable growth, with both providing steady sources of
income to the Group. During the first half year, we worked closely
with our interactive education partner to prepare a new generation
of products, which were launched in the second half year and
were favorably received by end users. The Group will certainly
keep abreast of the latest market trends and strengthen ties with
its partner to bolster competitiveness still further. In respect of
professional audio equipment, we received increased orders from
existing and new clients; however, instability in the second half
of 2011 led to a slowdown in business development with our
new clients. Though the base of this business is growing, we do
not anticipate the growth rate to be as significant as previously
experienced.

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
= & BB &£ BB FR 27

XBERE

EFEM

B F E on 5 75 69§55 §83£1,193,300,0007%8 T
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Pet training devices and auto-fare collection systems experienced a
decline in revenue during the review year. Consumer sentiment was
adversely affected by economic uncertainties and this prompted our
pet training devices partner to adopt a prudent approach, including
maintaining minimal inventory as part of inventory management.
With respect to auto-fare collection systems, some projects were
delayed as a direct result of the European financial crisis. We will
enhance communications with our client to understand the status of
new projects, as well as offer efficient solutions once projects are
reactivated.

Our newest product, solar inverters, operated within a relatively
small business base. Nevertheless, the Group has been able to
accumulate valuable production experience and believes this will be
crucial for producing new green energy devices, thus open the way to
fresh opportunities in light of growing demand for renewable energy
technologies.

Moulds and plastic products

Sales from the moulds and plastic segment contracted by 9.5% to
HK$48.7 million and accounted for 3.9% of SUGA's total sales. The
management is determined to raise efficiency of this segment with
the principal objective of maintaining a reasonable margin level.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACTIVITIES
AND GREEN ACHIEVEMENTS

While committed to the continuing development of SUGA, we have
not reneged on our corporate social responsibilities. Over the past
year, our staff once again brought pride to the Group, directly taking
part in a range of activities, including fasting for eight hours to raise
money for World Vision Hong Kong; donating blood to Hong Kong Red
Cross; and for the twelfth consecutive year, participating in the fund-
raising walkathon for Green Power. In recognition of our corporate
social responsibility efforts and the benefits of these efforts to the
community, the Group has been awarded the Caring Company Logo
2011/2012.

y
§
\
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Our subsidiary, Precise Computer Tooling Company Limited, also
helped wave the corporate flag, being named “Hong Kong —
Guangdong Cleaner Production Partner” and garnering the “Hang
Seng Pearl River Delta Environmental Awards — Green Medal”.

PROSPECTS

The manufacturing sector is invariably influenced by economic
development. Though uncertainty about Europe’s economic health
continues to cast a shadow on the market, we remain cautiously
optimistic about the year ahead. Such optimism is based on our
ability to leverage SUGA's attributes, which include a unique
business model, cost efficient production and portfolio of diversified
products — placing us in a strong position to seize fresh business
opportunities and cope with changing market dynamics.

Overall, we expect our diverse scope of products will continue to
serve as a solid base, providing stable sources of income. Orders for
general consumer electronic products, including telecommunication
products, are projected to grow consistently and in line with past
momentum. Interactive educational products and professional audio
equipment are set to perform in a stable manner, whereas the
restocking of pet training devices is anticipated to proceed once
consumption is back on track given that the current inventory level
is already relatively low. Likewise, orders for auto fare collection
systems will pick up once existing projects are reinitiated and
new projects introduced. Ahead of such time, we will intensify
communications with our partners and customers so that we are
well-prepared to quickly tender efficient solutions.

Having achieved organic growth of its established businesses, SUGA
will seek to realise similar inroads in the PRC pet market. With three
pet stores opened in Shenzhen under the “Losun” brand name during
the 2011 financial year, our objective has since been to enhance
customer satisfaction by raising efficiency and delivering still higher
quality service. Consistent with such objectives, we sought to
further optimise inventory control, broaden our supplier network and
intensify staff training. With China’s economy continuing to expand
at a healthy pace leading to higher per capita income, we will bolster
our presence in the country as opportunities arise so as to fully
capitalise on this ongoing development.

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
= & BB &£ BB FR 27
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Aside from market expansion, enhancing SUGA’s various competencies
is also essential for long-term growth. With this in mind, the Group
acquired the remaining 50% issued share capital of a jointly controlled
entity at a maximum consideration of US$2.5 million. The jointly
controlled entity is a sales agency that it had maintained dealings
with in the past years. The agreement was reached shortly after the
fiscal year in view of the exceptional value that the acquisition could
be realised, as well as the agency’s capacity to open up more market
opportunities.

On 7 May 2012, we further signed an agreement to purchase Benefit
Holding Co., Ltd., a Samoa incorporated company which indirectly
owns a site of approximately 53,361 square metres in Dongguan, at a
consideration of approximately RMB43.9 million. We plan to use the
site as the location of a new factory to be completed in two years. This
is in response to the rising number of orders that the Group has been
receiving over the past years, and anticipated growth in the future.
Moreover, with the cost of labor in Dongguan being lower than in
Shenzhen, which is the current location of our factories, the new site
allows us to reduce labor cost and provides the option of consolidating
production lines to further raise efficiency. While representing our mid-
term plan, the Dongguan factory is clearly expected to play a key role
in assisting us realise future objectives as well.

In making the acquisitions, we have reaffirmed our commitment to
evolving and strengthening the Group. Even though the world markets
have been highly unstable over the past few years, we have always
looked beyond the challenges to uncover fresh opportunities. We have
subsequently created a sound foundation for SUGA to grow and explore
new possibilities. Leveraging our proven business model and bolstered
infrastructure, we will not be discouraged by the economic challenges
ahead, but rather, draw motivation for achieving further growth and
delivering fair returns to shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group, | would like to extend my appreciation to
our customers, business partners and shareholders for their loyal
support. | wish to also express my gratitude to the management team
and staff for their diligence and perseverance during the past year.

Ng Chi Ho
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

During the year, revenue of the Group reached HK$1,242.0 million,
representing an increase of 4.3% as compared with HK$1,191.1
million in last year. The increase is primarily attributable to the
increase in sales of telecommunication devices, interactive education
products and professional audio equipment.

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
that are used to make strategic decisions by the Group senior
management. The Group senior management considers the Group
business mainly from product perspective, and the products of the
Group are mainly divided into electronic products and moulds and
plastic products.

For the year ended 31 March 2012, sales of electronic products
increased by 4.9% to HK$1,193.3 million (2011: HK$1,137.2 million).
The electronic products segment covers specialised electronic
products, general consumer electronic products and other electronic
products. Among all of the products in this segment, general
consumer electronic products, which include telecommunication
devices, record the largest growth. This was mainly attributed
by new orders from our Japanese customer for launching a new
telecommunication device during the year. Interactive education
products and professional audio equipment had maintained stable
growth and continued to generate stable income to the Group.
Revenue from pet training devices and auto-fare collection systems
declined during the year mainly affected by the volatile global market
economy in the second half of the year. As a result, our customer had
minimised their inventory on hand and new projects were delayed.

As for moulds and plastic products, revenue decreased by 9.5% to
HK$48.7 million (2011: HK$53.8 million) and accounted for 3.9% of
the Group’s total revenue.

Geographically, for the year ended 31 March 2012, revenue
generated from the top 3 countries, the United States of America, the
United Kingdom and Japan, accounting for 77.5% of the Group’s total
sales (2011: 76.8%).

// /
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Profit Attributable to owners of the Company

Despite continuous rise in production cost, especially labor cost,
the Group is able to maintain a steady gross profit margin of 13.3%
(2011: 13.6%) resulted from various effective cost contrals, including
greater automation, implemented by the management. Together with
the increase in sales during the year, gross profit increase by 1.7% to
HK$165.3 million (2011: HK$162.5 million).

Operating profit was HK$100.0 million, compared with HK$101.8
million last year, decreased by 1.8%. The decrease in operating profit
was primarily due to the slightly decrease in gross profit margin
and increase in general and administration expenses. General and
administration expenses increase by 15.3% during the year mainly
attributed by increase in depreciation expenses, staff cost, including
contribution to retirement scheme, and insurance costs.

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group has achieved a net
finance income of HK$1.9 million (2011: HK$0.6 million). The increase
was resulted from income received from bonds investments and
short-term deposits.

As a result of the aforementioned factors, profit attributable to
owners of the Company increased to HK$93.3 million from HK$90.4
million last year, representing an increase of 3.1%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2012, the Group has current assets of HK$504.9
million and current liabilities of HK$205.0 million. The current ratio
was 2.46. (31 March 2011: 2.44).

Bank borrowings were HK$31.8 million as at 31 March 2012 (31
March 2011: HK$46.3 million). The decrease in bank borrowings was
mainly due to repayment of long-term bank loan during the year.
Gearing ratio (calculated by dividing total bank borrowings by total
equity) was 7.3% (31 March 2011: 11.5%) The Group maintained a
net cash balance of HK$112.1 million as at the balance sheet date
(31 March 2011: HK$114.9 million).

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had aggregate banking facilities of
approximately HK$349.8 million (31 March 2011: HK$389.1 million)
from its principal bankers for overdrafts, loans and trade financing,
with unused facilities of HK$299.3 million (31 March 2011: HK$321.7
million).

The Group generally finances its operations by internally generated
resources and banking facilities provided by its principal bankers in
Hong Kong. Banking facilities used by the Group include revolving
loans, trust receipt loans, overdrafts, leasing and term loans, which
are primarily on floating interest rates basis.

FINANCIAL INVESTMENT

The Group has acquired certain financial assets during the year
ended 31 March 2012 and has properly classified and applied
appropriate measurement in accordance with HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and measurements” as available-for-sale
financial asset, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and bonds investments. Total value as at 31 March 2012 amounted
HK$31.7 million (2011: HK$29.6 million). The financial assets mainly
consist of corporate bonds denominated in USD and RMB, listed and
traded on active markets.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

The Group’s total capital expenditures for the year under review
were HK$15.8 million. The capital expenditures were mainly for the
purchase of machineries and equipments for production plants in
Mainland China.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group's transaction and monetary assets are principally
dominated in Reminbi, Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars.
The Group has not experienced any difficulties or effects on its
operations or liquidity as a result of the fluctuations in currency
exchange rates during the year ended 31 March 2012.

During the year, the Group had entered into several foreign exchange
contracts to manage the currency translation risk of Reminbi against
United States dollars. All these foreign exchange contracts were for
managing purpose and it is the policy of the Group not to enter into
any derivative contracts purely for speculative activities. The net
realised and unrealised profit on derivative instruments as of the
balance sheet date was HK$2.6 million.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had pledged its office premise
located at 22nd floor, Tower B, Billion Centre, Kowloon Bay together
with 4 car parking spaces to secure a bank mortgage loan of
HK$23.5 million (31 March 2011: HK$26.2 million) for financing the
acquisition of the office premise and car parking spaces. Other than
the said mortgage loan, the Group did not pledge any of its assets as
securities for the banking facilities granted to the Group.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT

LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had no outstanding capital
commitments (31 March 2011: nil). The Corporate guarantees given
to banks to secure the borrowings granted to subsidiaries as at 31
March 2012 amounted to HK$50.6 million (31 March 2011: HK$67.4
million) and the Group did not have any significant contingent
liability.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Acquisition of the remaining 50% issued share capital of
Suga-Al Limited

On 4 May 2012, Suga International Limited (the “Purchaser”), a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, purchased from Advanced
Innovations Limited (the “Vendor”) 50% of the issued share capital
of Suga-Al Limited (the “Target”), which was owned 50% by the
Purchaser and 50% by the Vendor before the acquisition (the
"Acquisition”), at a consideration of up to US$2.5 million. Upon
completion of the Acquisition, the Target has become wholly-owned
by the Purchaser and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. Immediately prior to the Acquisition, through the operation
of the Target, some of the electronic products manufactured by the
Group are distributed by the supply chain network as supported by
the Vendor. The Target has paid to the Vendor sale commissions
of approximately HK$42.8 million and HK$27.3 million for the year
ended 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2012 respectively. Taking
into account the business prospects and potential of the Target,
and the cost-saving effect of the arrangement of utilising the staff
who are currently under the employment of the Vendor by way of
secondment instead of paying sale commission to the Vendor after
the Acquisition, the Directors are of the view that the terms of
the acquisition are fair and reasonable and in the interest of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole. The Company had made
an announcement on this transaction and posted it on the Company’s
website and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website on 4 May
2012.
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Acquisition of the entire equity interest in Benefit
Holding Co., Ltd.

On 7 May 2012, Suga International Limited (the “Purchaser”) and
Mr. Ni Cheng-Tao (the “Vendor”) entered into an agreement (the
“Agreement”), pursuant to which the Purchaser conditionally agreed
to purchase, and the Vendor conditionally agreed to sell, the entire
equity interest of Benefit Holding Co., Ltd. ("Benefit Holding”), a
company incorporated in Samoa, at a consideration of approximately
RMBA43.9 million (the “Consideration”).The principal business activity
of Benefit Holding is investment holding and the sole non-current
asset of Benefit Holding is its 100% equity interest in Dongguan
Benefit Mechanicals Co., Ltd. (the “"PRC Subsidiary”). The PRC
Subsidiary owns the land use rights of a parcel of land with site area
of approximately 53,361 square meters located at Sanzhong Village,
Qingxi Town, Donnguan City, Guangdong Province, PRC (the “Land”).
The Group proposes to expand its production facilities for electronic
products in the PRC with the Land. The Directors are of the view that
the acquisition is in the interest of the Company and the terms of the
Agreement are fair and reasonable. The purchaser has paid RMB4.4
million as the first installment of the Consideration. The second
installment of approximately RMB35.2 million is to be paid within
three working days after the completion of the acquisition. The
balance of the Consideration of approximately RMB4.3 million is to
be paid within ten working days after 183 days from the completion
of the acquisition. The Company had made an announcement on this
transaction and posted it on the Company’s website and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange’s website on 7 May 2012.

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
= & BB &£ BB FR 27

Wz i&Benefit Holding Co., Ltd. & 2f iR A< fE i

WN=—Z—=_%F A At A  Suga International
Limited (B /) BREEELEE((EH]) L
& ((zZmEl) Bt EABGKREHAE
BEREH B G E E H SBenefit Holding
Co., Ltd. ([Benefit Holding]) & & SRR Ak 25 -
Benefit Holdingz —E R EZE R TMA L 2 A
A BEERELN AR ARMAL3,900,0005T ([
f&1) ° Benefit HoldingZz = Z ¥/ 58 AR &%
f% - ifBenefit Holdingz ¥ —3E R BN EE AHE R
R @EERAG ([PEMBAR]) 2
100% M Az - FRMBAREE —ELH2
TERE EA—BUNTREREREM
BEE RN AEHEEL53,361F T K2
t([Zzi]) - REBBREPRERZERZLT
WEZEFERMEERE EZRAE KWES
BRAARBIFE - BZBEZERTIRAFEE
o BB ARES400,000TEARE
BEDH - FF 5 HIFIALN AKS5,200,000
TERBBEBRRRE=MIERAI - F
BB 4 AR %4,300,0007T 78 75 Uk BE S TE TR
FBEH83R & 2 TR TERAZAT « RARIEL
RZE—Z—FRAtERUEISHERAMH -
W EEBRA R 2 430k &% BB T2 8uh -



Management Discussion and Analysis

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2012 the Group has approximately 2,140 employees,
of which 48 were based in Hong Kong and Macao while the rest
were mainly in Mainland China. Remuneration policy is reviewed
regularly, making reference to current legislation, market condition
and both individual and company performance. In addition to salaries
and other usual benefits like annual leave, medical insurance
and various mandatory pension schemes, the Group also provides
educational sponsorship subsidies, discretionary performance bonus
and share options. A share option scheme was adopted on 17
September 2002 which is valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from the adoption date, detailed of which are specified in the Section
“Share Option Scheme” on page 41 of this annual report.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. NG Chi Ho, aged 62 is the founder, chairman and managing
director of the Group. He is responsible for the formulation of
corporate strategy, strategic planning and development, and overall
management of the Group. Dr. Ng has over 35 years of management
experience in the electronics industry and had been a lecturer in
electronic engineering at the Hong Kong Polytechnic University for
4 years. Dr. Ng holds a bachelor degree in science from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong, a master of philosophy degree in computer
engineering from the University of Hong Kong, and an honorary
doctor of engineering degree from Lincoln University, USA. Dr. Ng is
a chartered engineer, a fellow of the Institution of Engineering and
Technology, UK, a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and
an honorary fellow of the Canadian Chartered Institute of Business
Administration. In addition, Dr Ng is a general committee member
of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries, chairman of Hong Kong
Electronics Industries Council, honorary vice chairman of Hong
Kong Electronic Industries Association. He is also a member of the
advisory committee of Electronic and Electrical Industries of the Hong
Kong Trade Development Council, as well as member of the advisory
committee on Electronic Engineering of the Chinese University of
Hong Kong.

Mr. MA Fung On, aged 54, is the deputy chairman of the Group.
Mr. MA is responsible for the formulation of the Group's overall
strategic planning and policies, as well as overseeing the personnel,
administration and logistics of the Group. Mr. MA has worked
with the Group for more than 19 years and has over 30 years of
experience in the electronics industry. He graduated from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University with a higher diploma in electronic
engineering. He is the Electronics and Telecommunications Training
Board Member as well as the Advisory Committe Member on Pro-Act
Training and Development Centre (Electronics) Courses of Vocational
Training Council.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LEE Kam Hung, aged 54, is a non-executive director of
the Group. He holds a master degree in engineering business
management from the University of Warwick in the UK. Mr. LEE
is now the founder, chairman and technical director of Hong Kong
Automotive X'tals Limited and its group companies. In addition, Mr.
LEE is the executive vice president of Hong Kong Young Industrialists
Council, Vice president of Youth Council, Director of Hong Kong
Auto Parts Industry Association, member of Design Smart Initiative
Assessment Panel and Shield Industrial Centre Owner’s Corporation
and Electronics Industry Council, executive committee member of the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries. He is also an advisory committee
member on Department of Applied Physics and honorary life director
of PolyU Development Foundation of the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Professor WONG Sook Leung, Joshua, aged 73, is an
independent non-executive director of the Group. He is also the
chairman of the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Group. Prof. WONG is presently the
Professor Emeritus of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He
has over 34 years of working experience with tertiary educational
institutions including 28 years with the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University of which 6 years as the vice president, 2 years as the
senior consultant, 10 years as chair professor in electronic and
information engineering department and 16 years as the head
of electronic engineering department. Prior to joining the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, he was an associate professor of
California State University at Los Angeles, US from 1968 to 1974. In
addition, he was the president of the Hong Kong Association for the
Advancement of Science and Technology in 1988/89. Prof. WONG
is currently president of the Hong Kong Semiconductor Industries
Council. Prof. WONG obtained his bachelor of engineering degree
from the University of Hong Kong and his doctor of philosophy degree
from Leeds University, UK. He is also a chartered engineer, a fellow
member of the Institution of Engineering and Technology, UK and a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers.
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Mr. LEUNG Yu Ming, Steven, aged 53, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Group and a member of audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Group.
Mr. LEUNG holds a master degree in accounting from Charles Sturt
University in Australia and a bachelor degree in social science from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. LEUNG is an associate
member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales, a practising certified accountant of CPA Australia
and a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong respectively. Mr. LEUNG
is also a practising certified public accountant in Hong Kong. Mr.
LEUNG previously worked in Nomura International (Hong Kong)
Limited as an assistant vice president in the International Finance
and Corporate Finance Department. He commenced public practice
in auditing and taxation since 1990. He is now the senior partner of
a certified public accountants firm. Mr. LEUNG has over 27 years of
experience in assurance, accounting, taxation, financial management
and corporate finance. Mr. LEUNG is also an independent non-
executive director of C C Land Holdings Limited, The Cross
Harbour (Holdings) Limited, Y.T. Realty Group Limited and Yugang
International Limited, all of which are companies listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange.

Mr. CHAN Kit Wang, aged 59, is an independent non-executive
director of the Group and a member of audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Group. Mr. CHAN
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1977 with a
higher diploma in accountancy. Mr. CHAN is a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, associate member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He is now
a senior partner of a certified public accountants firm. Mr. CHAN
has over 35 years of working experience in accounting, auditing and
taxation.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LEE Yiu Cheung, Alex, aged 55, is the chief financial officer
of the Group. Mr. LEE is responsible for overseeing the corporate
and financial matters of the Group. Mr. Lee is a practising certified
public accountant in Hong Kong. He is also an associate member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. LEE joined the Group in early 2005 and has over 32 years of
experience in corporate finance, accounting and auditing. Before
joining the Group, he worked for a blue chip listed company in
Hong Kong for over 17 years in a senior executive position. Mr. LEE
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a higher
diploma in accountancy. He is the brother-in-law of Dr. Ng Chi Ho,
the Chairman and Managing Director of the Group.

Mr. WONG Wai Lik, Lamson, aged 48, is the general manager
of moulds and plastic products division and is responsible for
overseeing the operations of Huizhou plant. Mr. WONG graduated
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a higher diploma in
production and industrial engineering. He joined the Group in 1992
and has over 25 years of experience in production operations and
supervision.

Ms. WONG Sin, Kathy, aged 42, is the general manager of
electronic manufacturing service (“EMS”) division of the Group in
Xixiang plant and is responsible for overseeing the operations of
the factory. Ms. WONG holds an EMBA from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University, China. She joined the Group in 2002 and has over 19 years
of experience in the electronics manufacturing industry.
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Mr. TENG Boon Han, Eric, aged 34, is the general manager
of EMS and pet training products divisions and is responsible for
the overall operations including programme management, order
management, supply chain management, product development and
manufacturing in Buji plant. Mr. TENG holds a bachelor degree of
Business Administration in Finance and Economics from University of
New Brunswick, Canada. He joined the Group in 2007. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. TENG worked for global IT and telecommunication
companies. He has had international working exposure in the USA,
Malaysia, Indonesia and Thailand within those companies.

Mr. FUNG Chi Leung, Mark, aged 48, is the general manager of
the marketing division in Buji plant. He holds a Bachelor of Science
degree from the University of Toronto in Canada. Mr. FUNG has over
25 years of working experience in electronics sales and marketing.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) and the management of Suga
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) are committed to
attain and uphold a high standard of corporate governance that
properly protect and promote the interests of its shareholders and
other stakeholders including customers, suppliers, employees and the
general public.

Throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2012, the Company
has complied with the code provisions set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), except for CG Code A.2.1.

CG Code A2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Up to the date of this report, the Group does
not have a separate Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and Dr.
Ng Chi Ho currently holds both positions. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same
person provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership in
the development and execution of long-term business strategies.
Going forward, the Group will periodically review the effectiveness
of this arrangement and considers appointing an individual as Chief
Executive Officer when it thinks appropriate.

Save the abovementioned deviation, none of the directors of the
Company is aware of information that would reasonably indicate the
Company is not or was not in compliance with the code provisions
set out in the CG Code for the year under review.

With respect to the recent changes to the Listing Rules on corporate
governance, the Board has updated or established various policies
and procedures and the committees have updated their terms of
reference in compliance with the new Corporate Governance Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Group's overall management is vested in its board of directors,
which now comprises six members, coming from diverse businesses
and professional backgrounds. The Board consisted of two executive
directors, Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman), Mr. Ma Fung On (Deputy
Chairman), one non-executive director, Mr. Lee Kam Hung and three
independent non-executive directors ('INED’), Professor Wong Sook
Leung, Joshua, Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven and Mr. Chan Kit Wang
(collectively the ‘Directors’). There is no financial, business or family
relationship between the Directors. The principal functions of the
Board are to supervise the Group’s business and affairs; to review
the Group’s financial performance; to review the Group’s systems
of internal control; to approve the strategic plans, investment and
funding decision. For the financial reporting accountability, the Board
has the ultimate responsibility for preparing the financial statements.
The day-to-day management is conducted by senior management and
employees of the Group, under the direction and supervision of the
Directors. When the Directors are aware of any events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, such events or conditions will be clearly set out
and discussed in this Corporate Governance Report.

The Company has complied with Rules 3.10 (1) and (2) of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three INEDs among
whom one has to have appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting of related finance management expertise. The role of
INED is to bring an independent and objective view to the Board's
deliberations and decisions. The Company has received from each
of the INED an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
INEDs are independent.

All non-executive directors (including INEDs) shall have a fixed
tenure and is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.
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The Board meets at least four times annually to review business
development and overall strategic policies. The Board is supplied
with relevant information by the senior management pertaining
to matters to be brought before the Board for decision as well as
reports relating to operational and financial performance of the
Group before each regular board meeting. At least 14 days notice
of a regular board meeting is given to all directors to give them the
opportunity to attend. Board papers are dispatched to the directors
at least three days before the meeting to ensure that they have
sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately prepared for
the meeting.

The Board is responsible for the system of internal controls of
the Company and its subsidiaries, setting appropriate policies
and reviewing the effectiveness of such controls. Internal control
is defined as a process effected by the Board, management and
other personnel, designed to manage rather then eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable, not absolute assurance of the following:

effectiveness and efficiency operations

reliability of financial reporting

— compliance with applicable laws and regulations

effectiveness of risk management functions

The Board conducted a review of the system of internal controls
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March
2012 including the consideration of the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function and their training programmes and
budget. The Board assessed the effectiveness of internal control by
considering reviews performed by the Audit Committee and executive
management, if any, and is satisfied that the system of internal
control of the Group is functioning properly.
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The attendance record of the Board meeting during the year is as
follow:

Number of meetings

SRRE

Name of directors

EEpE

Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman) RextEtL(FE)
Mr. Ma Fung On (Deputy Chairman) SEREE(FEE)
Mr. Lee Kam Hung IR A

Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua L= PRk 65

Mr. Leung Yu Ming Steven RFHILE

Mr. Chan Kit Wang RN A&

DIRECTORS" AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES
INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

To indemnify Directors and officers of the Company against all costs,
charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by them in the
executive of and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto, the
Company has arrange insurance cover for this purpose.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Group's independent auditor is PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC").
The financial reporting responsibilities of the independent auditors
are set out on pages 53 to 54 of this annual report.

During the year, remuneration of approximately HK$2,116,000 was
payable to PwC for the provision of audit services. In addition,
approximately HK$116,000 was payable to PwC for other non-audit
services. The non-audit services mainly consist of tax compliance and
other services.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs. The Chairman of the
Audit Committee is Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua. The Audit
Committee meetings are held not less than twice a year to review
and discuss the internal control systems of the Group, to review the
Group’s interim and annual financial statements, and also monitors
the appointment and function of the Group’s independent auditors.
Additional meetings may also be held by the Committee from time
to time to discuss special projects or other issues of which the Audit
Committee considers necessary. The Committee’s authority and
duties are set out in written terms of reference and are posted on the
websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

The attendance record of the Audit Committee meetings during the
year is as follows:

Number of meeting

BERE

Member of Audit Committee

EREEERE

Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua (Chairman) @B @2% (£ /E)
Mr. Leung Yu Ming Steven RFEAE

Mr. Chan Kit Wang PRANZR S

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the fiscal year
2010/2011 annual report and fiscal year 2011/2012 interim report,
including the accounting principles and practice adopted by the
Group, reviewed and discussed the financial results and internal
control systems of the Group, conducted discussions with the
independent auditors on financial reporting, compliance, and
reported all relevant matters to the Board.

The Audit Committee has also reviewed the fiscal year 2011/2012
annual report in a meeting held on 20 June 2012.

EEERRE

BREEE
ERZEEM-RBUNFNTESTENK - B
ZEGIFERERER BERZEEEFE
TPLRMREE - R Ratim A s B A
EEHE  BHARETHEFEREMHRE -
IR EBAKER L ZBMNRENBE - F
BEZEENMARE TR RITEINE S Wl
BHAEZZECGRRTEN M EMER -
ZEgZRHLBEINEABREEN  H
ERHERARALEBHERIMERRRZ
LA o

TR ERZEGERZLFLHNT

Meeting attended
HESBEXH
2/2

2/2

2/2

FR BRZEGEEMN_T-T /T
FHBRFRFRER T —— /T —_FHHK
FETHRE  SERIAEEMRB 2S5
FRAIRABG] - =B Kl o Sk BRI 15 K 48 R AP
B - BB WM R HRNRE R
EH YRMEEZSERMAEEEE -

BEREZEBEGNER T F A +RHET
8RB _T—— T -_FUHRFE
FH o

Annual Report 2011/125 %

33



34

Corporate Governance Report
TEERMSE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises three INEDs and is currently
chaired by Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua. No director or senior
executive will be involved in any discussion in connection with his
own remuneration. The meeting of the Remuneration Committee
shall normally be held not less than once a year

The Committee’s principal responsibilities are reviewing
remuneration packages of directors and senior management
and make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
structure. It also reviews and guides the formulation of the Group's
performance related pay schemes. Term of reference which described
the authorities and duties of the Remuneration Committee are
publicly available on the websites of the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange and the contents of which are in compliance
with the Code Provisions of the CG Code.

The attendance record of the Remuneration Committee meeting
during the year is as follow:

Number of meeting

B

Member of the Remuneration Committee

FMEZEEERE

Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua (Chairman) &&= (/&)
Mr. Leung Yu Ming Steven RFEAAE

Mr. Chan Kit Wang PR HE

During the year the Remuneration Committee reviewed the director’s
fees of all current non-executive Directors and INEDs, and the
remuneration of all current executive Directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises three INEDs and is currently
chaired by Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua. The meeting of the
Nomination Committee shall normally be held not less than once
a year. The Committee will identify qualified candidates to fill the
Board membership whenever such vacancy arises. It will nominate
such candidates for the Board to consider, and regularly review the
composition of the Board as well as make suggestions as to any
change that may be required. The Committee’s authority and duties
are set out in written terms of reference and are posted on the
websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The attendance record of the Nomination Committee meeting is as
follow:

Number of meeting

BERE

Member of the Nomination Committee

REZEEHRE

Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua (Chairman) ~ =R =#% (F/E)
Mr. Leung Yu Ming Steven RFHIEE

Mr. Chan Kit Wang PR

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group made specific enquiry of all directors as to whether
they complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code (Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules) regarding their securities
transactions. It was confirmed that there was full compliance. The
relevant employee who, because of their office in the Group, are
likely to be in possession of unpublished price sensitive information,
have been requested to comply with the provisions of the Model
Code.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining effective
communications with shareholders. In order to develop and maintain
continuing relationship with the shareholders of the Company, the
Company established various channels to facilitate and enhance
communication:

(i) the annual general meeting provides a useful forum for the
shareholders of the Company to raise comments and exchange
views with the Board,

(i) the company makes sure its website www.suga.com.hk contains
the most current information, including annual reports, interim
reports, announcements and press releases,

(iii) the management of the Group continually conducts meetings
with investors, analysts and the media, and provides them
with up-to-date and comprehensive information regarding the
Company’s development and answers to their queries.

In order to provide effective disclosure to investors and potential
investors and to ensure they will receive equal access to the same
information at the same time, information considered to be of a price
sensitive nature is released by way of formal public announcements
as required by the Listing Rules.

VOTING BY POLL

The Company regularly informs shareholders of the procedures for
voting by poll in all general meetings of the Company and ensures
compliance with the requirements about voting by poll contained in
the Listing Rules and the Bye-laws of the Company. The results of the
poll are published on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange's website and
the Company’s website.
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The Directors are pleased to present to the shareholders their
report and the audited financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together, “the Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the research and development,
manufacture and sale of electronic products, moulds and plastic
products. Details of the principal activities of the Group's
subsidiaries are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by reporting
and geographical segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 57 of this annual
report.

An interim dividend of HK7.0 cents per ordinary share was paid
during the financial year. The Directors have proposed the payment
of a final dividend of HK10.0 cents per ordinary share for the year
ended 31 March 2012. Total dividend for the year ended 31 March
2012 will amount to HK17.0 cents per ordinary share.

The proposed final dividend, if approved at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held on 6 August 2012 is
expected to be paid on or before 17 August 2012 to shareholders of
the Company whose names appear on the Register of Shareholders
of the Company on 10 August 2012.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS (Continued)

The register of Shareholders of the Company will be closed for the

following periods:

(i)

(ii)

The register of Shareholders of the Company will be closed from
3 August 2012 to 6 August 2012 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order
to qualify to attend and vote at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting, all transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 2 August 2012;
and

The register of Shareholders of the Company will be closed
on 10 August 2012, during which date no transfer of shares
will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final
dividend, all transfers of Shares accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 9 August 2012.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of

the Company during the year are set out in the note 25 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in share capital and share options of

the Company during the year are set out in notes 23 and 24 to the

consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2012

calculated under Company Act of Bermuda amounted to
HK$111,088,000 (2011: HK$113,767,000).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

DONATIONS
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$168,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particular of bank borrowings as at 31 March 2012 are set out in note
21 to the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of retirement schemes are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out on
page 164 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors
Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman)
Mr. Ma Fung On (Deputy Chairman)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lee Kam Hung

Independent Non-executive Directors
Professor Wong Sook Leung, Joshua

Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven

Mr. Chan Kit Wang

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Mr. Lee Kam Hung and
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven will retire by rotation in accordance with
Bye-law 111 of the Company’s Bye-laws. All the retiring Directors are
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Each of Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Directors is appointed for a term of one year.

Dr. Ng Chi Ho, being Executive Directors of the Company has entered
into a service contract with the Company for an initial fixed term of
three years commencing from 1 September 2002 and will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either party on the other. Mr. Ma Fung On, being
Executive Director, has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial fixed term of three years commencing from 1
April 2004 and will continue thereafter until terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the
other. Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors proposed for
re-election has a service contract with the Company, which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme adopted on 17 September
2002 (the “Share Option Scheme”), under which it may grant options
to eligible participants (including Directors of the Company) to
subscribe for shares in the Company.

Principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Group to grant options to selected participants as incentives
or rewards for their contribution to the Group. The Directors
consider the Share Option Scheme, with its broadened basis of
participation, will enable the Group to reward the employees,
Directors and other selected participants for their contributions
to the Group and will also assist the Group in its recruitment
and retention of high caliber professionals, executives and
employees who are instrumental to the growth of the Group.

2. Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme
Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include:

(a) any employee (whether full time or part time) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested
Entity”) in which the Group holds an equity interest,
including any executive director of the Company, any of
such subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

(b) any non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, and of its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity;

(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;
(e) any person or entity that provides research, development

or other technological support to the Group or any Invested
Entity;
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

2.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme
(Continued)

(f) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(g) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity; and

(h) any joint venture partner or counter-party to business
operations or business arrangements of the Group.

Total number of Share available for issue

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme must not exceed
10% of the issue share capital of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme
was 25,980,000 shares (including 1,486,000 shares subject to
options that have been granted but not yet lapsed or exercised),
which represented 9.54% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Share issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group
to each participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%
of the issued share capital of the Company for the time being
(“Individual Limit"). Any further grant of options in excess of
the Individual Limit in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of such further grant must be subject to shareholders’
approval in general meeting with such participant and his or her
associates abstaining from voting.

Options granted to a substantial shareholder or an Independent
Non-executive Director in excess of 0.1% of the Company's
share capital in issue for the time being and with a value in
excess of HK$5 million must be approved by shareholders of the
Company.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

5.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price for shares under the Share Option
Scheme shall be a price determined by the Directors, but shall
not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations on the date
of the offer of grant; (ii) the average closing price of shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.

Exercise period of an option

An option may be exercised at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee, which
period may commence from the date upon which the offer for
the grant of the option is accepted but shall end on any event
not later than 10 years from the date of the offer of the grant of
the option.

Time and payment on acceptance

An option must be accepted by a participant within 21 days
from the date of the offer of the grant of the option. A nominal
consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance of the grant
of an option.

Minimum period and performance targets

Unless the Directors otherwise determined and stated in the
offer of the grant of options to a grantee, a grantee is not
required to hold an option for any minimum period nor achieve
any performance targets before any options granted under the
Share Option Scheme can be exercised.

Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general
meeting, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
till 16 September 2012. After the expiry of such valid period,
no further options will be offered or granted but in all other
respects the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall
remain in full force and effect.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

9. Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme
(Continued)
Details of the share option movements during the period from 1

BRESE®)

9.

April 2011 to 31 March 2012 under the Scheme Option Scheme

BRESE NGFH &)

A= ——FmA-HE-E——F=]
=+ — BRI RTEIR T 2 H i

are as follows: ZHABWT
Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding Outstanding
at 1 April at 31 March
2011 Granted Exercised Lapsed 012
WZZ——% duringthe duringthe duringthe R=F—-Z% Exercise
MA—-A period period period =B=t—H  price  Date of grant Exercisable period
WATE HARE BRTE BAER HAGE KE bl kid
(HKS)
(A7)
Professor Wong Sook Leung, 220,000 - 220,000 - - 0682 4 August 2009 4 August 2009 -
Joshua (Note 1) 3 August 2014
EBRYR (iEa)) —ZINE “EINEN\ARAZE
NRmA ZZ-mENA=H
Continuous contract 110,000 - - - 110000 1331 29 April 2010 29 April 2010 -
Employees 28 April 2015
REBANES “E-%% _E-TFMA-THAEZE
MAZthB  ZE-REMA-+NR
Continuous contract 1,045,000 - - 1045000 1145 3 June 2010 31 December 2013 -
Employees 3 June 2015
RERNER Z5-%F ZE-=£4-A=1-H
~A=H E-E-1ERAZH
Continuous contract - 432,000 - - 432000 1.750 21 October 2011 22 Qctober 2014 -
Employees (Note 2) 21 October 2016
REANES (Kfzr2) ZE-—-% ZE-META-TZHE
tA=t-8 —Z-7"%tA=t-H
Others 330,000 - 330,000 - - 0682 4 August 2009 4 August 2009 -
Efh (Note 3| 3 August 2014
(F3E3) —ZTNE “ZTNEN\ARAZE
NAA “E-mENAZH
1,705,000 432,000 550,000 - 1,587,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

9.
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BRESE @)

Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme 9. BRESTEZRERFH (&)

(Continued)

Notes: B &

1. During the period, the weight average closing price of the 1. RAHEEE - E¥220,00010 B REET
Company's share immediately before the date (11 May 2011) on FHH(ZE——FRA+—H)AIZAK
which 220,000 share options were exercised was HK$2.620 AEIR D i U E B2.6208 7T ©

2. The closing price of the Company's share immediately before the 2. BEBREEREBHR(CE——%F1A
date (21 October 2011) on which the share options were granted, —+—8)AARRRRED 2 W E A1.750
was HK$1.750. BIT e

3. During the period, the weight average closing price of the 3. RABHBERE - E#330,0001 AR EEST
Company’s share immediately before the date (27 July 2011) on FRAP(ZCE——FtA-++tR)ATIZ
which 330,000 share options were exercised was HK$2.700 RA R INEFHWTE /27008 T -

Details of the share option movements during the period from M-_E——FMWA—HE-_T—-F<A

1 April 2012 to 26 June 2012 under the Scheme Option Scheme “HNBHIR  EREREIE TIERE

are as follows: ZEFBNT

Number of share options
BREXA
Outstanding Outstanding
at 1 April at 26 June
2012 Lapsed 2012
R=ZB—=% duringthe R-F-=F Exercise
A-H period R<AZtRA price Date of grant Exercisable period
MATHE  HAXK i K AT B THE R A T
(HKS)
()
Continuous contract 110,000 - 110,000 1.331 29 April 2010 29 April 2010 - 28 April 2015
Employees —E-%F “E-ZEEAZtNEE
HEANES MAZ+ 1A “E-RFEAZtNA
Continuous contract 1,045,000 55,000 990,000 1.145 3 June 2010 31 December 2013 - 3 June 2015
Employees “E-%F “E-Z¥TZA=1-H
HERNER ~AZAH E-T-n%~A=H
Continuous contract 432,000 46,000 386,000 1750 21 October 2011 22 October 2014 — 21 October 2016
Employees —E——F ZE-NFETAZTZHE
REGHEE +A=-+—H “E-R"EtAZT-H
1,587,000 101,000 1,486,000
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 March 2012, the interests and the short positions of the
directors of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the "SFQ")) which are required to be notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of the Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they have
taken or deemed to have under such positions of the SFO) or which
are required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein, or which are required, pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”), to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:—
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (Continued) EERROZER (&)
Long position 3
Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company KARZ & H MBI, 2 #Ew
(a) Interests in shares of the Company (a) RARGIRGDZ#Ezm
Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
SREBEMEBTZERR
Number of
underlying
Percentage of shares held
issued ordinary under equity
shares derivatives
Number of Total B8 RAEIA
Name of Director Capacity shares interests EER BETHRSER
EEpgE g2 ROHE ERAR BAk R & E
(Note 1)
(FF&E1)
Dr. Ng Chi Ho Beneficial owner 6,930,000 160,578,000 58.97% -
REZEL EREEA
Interests of controlled 43,648,000 - - -
corporation (Note 2)
REEEER (B &E2)
Founder of a 110,000,000 - - -
discretionary trust (Note 3)
PREREIRE (P E3)
Mr. Ma Fung On Beneficial owner 4,323,000 14,223,000 5.22%
SEZTRE ERBBA
Interests of controlled 9,900,000 - - -
corporation (Note 4)
REEEER (Fft554)
Mr. Lee Kam Hung Beneficial owner 1,949,200 3,883,000 1.43% -
FHELE ERBERA
Interests of controlled 1,933,800 - - -
corporation (Note 5)
REEEER (P 555)
Professor Wong Sook Beneficial owner 220,000 220,000 0.08% -
Leung, Joshua ExBEEA
bR 6
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven  Beneficial owner 330,000 330,000 0.12% -
RFHLE ERBBA
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (Continued)

Long pesition (Continued)
(a) Interests in shares of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

These represent the interests in underlying shares in respect of
the share opinions granted by the Company, the details of which
are set out in the sub-section “Share Option Scheme”.

43,648,000 shares are held by Billion Linkage Limited, the entire
issued shares of which are held by Dr. Ng Chi Ho and his spouse
in equal shares.

110,000,000 Shares are held by Superior View Inc., the entire
issued shares of which are ultimately held by Fidelitycorp Limited
as the trustee of the C.H. Family Trust, the beneficiaries of which
are the family members of Dr. Ng Chi Ho.

9,900,000 Shares are held by Global Class Enterprises Limited,
the entire issued shares of which are held by Mr. Ma Fung On.

1,933,800 shares are held by Quick Fit Enterprises Ltd, the
ultimate shareholder is Mr. Lee Kam Hung.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (Continued)

Long position (Continued)

(b) Interests in shares of the Company's associated
corporation
Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1.00 each in Suga Electronics
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company:
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(b) WAL EINEEEER (D Bz

RARBZENBAREEEFERRAF
BREE1008T 2 EREERTERD

Number of
Non-voting
deferred Percentage of
shares (Note 1) issued shares
Name of Director Capacity EBREREL 28T
=Y 55 BB (M) BB E D
Dr. Ng Chi Ho Interests of controlled corporation 3,680,000 92%
REREL REAE R (Note 2)
(Bf&E2)
Mr. Ma Fung On Interests of controlled corporation 240,000 6%
BEREE XL R (Note 2)
(Ff&E2)
Notes: Bt 3%
1. These non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights, are not 1 ZEMGTTRELERGDEELZE g UL

entitled to dividends, and are not entitled to any distributions
upon winding up unless a sum of HK$10,000,000,000 per ordinary
shares has been distributed to the holders of ordinary shares.

2. The 4,000,000 non-voting deferred shares in Suga Electronics
Limited are held as to 80% by Essential Mix Enterprises Limited
and 20% by Broadway Business Limited. Dr. Ng Chi Ho and Mr.
Ma Fung On hold 92% and 6% interests in each of Essential Mix
Enterprises Limited and Broadway Business Limited respectively.

Save as disclosed above and under the “Share Option Scheme”,
none of the Directors of the Company have any interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations as defined in the SFO as at
31 March 2012.

BB BERE RETERERBAEAEES
K & % A% 10,000,000,00056 L1 © 2%
EREZRRELEROEEATTESIR -

2. 4000000/ Z =B FERARERFERLT
479> Bl F Essential Mix Enterprises Limited &
Broadway Business Limited$3 5 80% 5%20% ° =
BT RBERTES B RIREssential
Mix Enterprises Limited &zBroadway Business
Limited$3 592% M6% 1 25 °

Br b R [RERRAERT Sl JETHEEN  RZT
——FZR=1+—H ARREEHMENAELR
A R EAREEE (E&REHFRBEEM) 2K’k
o MERNDRESFTEBENER AR
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company was materially interested, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
In the opinion of the Directors, there is no such competing business
as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2012, the following persons (not being a Director or
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO and which have been recorded in the register kept
by the Company pursuant to the section 336 of the SFO.

EERGHNZESR

AR EZLEEARFRIFR TR
DABMMERNEEXEBER AANRAHE
MBARLETON ZAHF  BERAHEERER
EfRERE L -

EERBERB2ER
EERA LEBEMNBEERAXSMBRAA
A EmARR(TEMRA]) FEZHFER -

FTERR

RZE-——"F=ZA=1+—H BREARAREZE
7 R B 1R DI 3361617 E < B prac ik
THAL(UFERARREZTLETRITHAE)
RARREZ B MR T - BEAREE
7 R ERGIEXVERFE2 30 R E M AR F
BEZERIAR °

Percentage of

Name Capacity Number of shares issued shares

meE/EB &5 RHOBE EBRTROBEIL

Superior View Inc. (Note 1) (Ff#£1) Beneficial owner 110,000,000 40.40%
ERERA

Billion Linkage Limited (Note 2) (ff5£2) Beneficial owner 43,648,000 16.03%
ERERA

Notes:

1. The entire issued shares of Superior View Inc. are ultimately held
by Fidelitycorp Limited as trustee of the C.H. Family Trust, the
beneficiaries of which are the family members of Dr. Ng Chi Ho.

2. The entire issued shares of Billion Linkage Limited are held by Dr. Ng
Chi Ho and his spouse in equal shares and, as such, Dr. Ng Chi Ho
is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Billion Linkage
Limited under the SFO.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as far as is known to the Directors, there
is no person, other than the Directors and chief executives of the
Company, who has an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provision 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as at
31 March 2012.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's largest customer for the year accounted for
approximately 21.6% of the Group’s total revenue and the five
largest customers accounted for approximately 68.0% of the
Group's total revenue. In addition, the largest supplier of the Group
accounted for approximately 4.4% of the Group's purchases while
the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately
17.5% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company's
share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers
noted above.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As at 31 March 2012, the Company was not involved in any material
litigation or arbitration and no material litigation or arbitration were
pending or threatened or made against the Company so far the
Company is aware.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE TEER

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of AARB OB KEZDEERTHETE -
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate KABRPZ EERBRTRERSHNE29
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the EEZ[DEEABREIN-

“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 29 to 36.

PUBLIC FLOAT ﬁ%’x%ﬁi%

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company BEAARAFHNEZERNMRESHA B
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this AmEBH  KRAPLRBBEFTROE
report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the R F R THARALTES -

Company's issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR B
The financial statements for the year have been audited by AEEZHERRCHEERKEETMERS
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offered e s EEEN S EmER - EA BRI

themselves for re-appointment. FREEEHE -

On behalf of the Board REE=EY

Suga International Holdings Limited FEEBREEERA T

NG Chi Ho TE

Chairman RER

Hong Kong, 26 June 2012 BB T AZ+XAH
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF SUGA INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Suga
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 55 to 163, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 March 2012,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor's Report
& Az SRR

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2012, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 June 2012
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Balance Sheets
BEBERX

Asat31March 2012 R=ZE—=—%=B=+—H

Group Company
AKE b/
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-_—F —E-—_F
=A=t+-A =A=+-A
HKS$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
THET T TER TAEL
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BEREE 6 116,678 113,367 - -
Land use rights TR 7 4,159 4,225 - -
Goodwill Bl 8 1,059 1,059 - -
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR 2 RE 9 - — 65,974 65,849
Interests in associates NN 10 1,733 - - -
Interest in a jointly controlled entity N —FIELREHIEE 2R 11 - - - -
Amount due from an associate L AN ] 10 267 - - -
Long-term loan receivable R REWRIE 17 16,250 - - -
Available-for-sale financial asset [t HHEB B EE 12 2,679 4,150 - -
Financial assets at fair value BRATELZABR
through profit or loss LHBEE 13 6,993 11,481 - —
Bonds investments BEHEE 14 9,109 14,011 - -
Deferred income tax assets BIEREHEE 2 3,665 1,888 - -
162,592 150,181 65,974 65,849
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 16 160,230 155,062 - -
Trade and other receivables EUWE ZER R
Hth YR IR 17 156,417 144,403 249 250
Financial assets at fair value BRAVFELABRE
through profit or loss LHBEE 13 1,762 = - =
Bonds investments EHELE 14 5,165 = - =
Tax recoverable el E 400 366 118 9%
Amounts due from subsidiaries L) UNGIE 9 - - 137,832 140,046
Amount due from a jointly FE U — PR £ R
controlled entity BB E 11 30,083 26,112 - -
Derivative financial instruments T4 €@ T & 18 853 498 - -
Cash and cash equivalents Re kB2 EEY 19 143,959 161,149 M3 268
504,869 487,590 138,612 140,660
Total assets BEAE 667,461 637,771 204,586 206,509
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities krBEE
Bank borrowings RITIEE 21 22,463 33,499 - -
Deferred income tax liabilities EEMEHEAE 2 2,807 2,275 - =
25,270 35,774 - -
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Balance Sheets
BEABERXR

Asat31March 2012 R=ZE—=—5=F=+—H

Group Company
AEH ADF
31 March 31 March 31 March
2012 AN 2012
“E--f T4 CZE-CZf
=ZA=t+-H =ZA=+—-H =ZA=t-H
Note HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
Pt & TERT TET TER TEL
Current liabilities nBAE
Trade and other payables EREHERK 20 179,872 169,623 2,242 1,986
Hi 58
Income tax payable FERET BT 15,737 17,661 - -
Bank borrowings RITEE 21 9,376 12,755 - -
204,985 200,039 2,242 1,986
Total liabilities EEAE 230,255 235,813 2,242 1,986
EQUITY Es
Capital and reserves attributable ~ SFBR AR A
to the owners of MBS zBRA
the Company R
Share capital R AR 23 21,229 27174 21,229 27,174
Other reserves H it 25 115,499 110,764 128,899 128,454
Retained earnings REBEF 25
— Proposed dividend —HRR S 21,229 43514 21,229 43514
— Others —Hft 267,415 220,506 18,987 5,381
431,372 401,958 202,344 204,523
Non-controlling interests ik ile (166) - - -
Total equity Emanm 431,206 401,958 202,344 204,523
Total equity and liabilities BEREEER 667,461 637,771 204,586 206,509
Net current assets RBEEFE 299,884 287,551 136,370 138,674
Total assets less current EEAENRE
liabilities =N 462,476 437,132 202,344 204,523
Director Director
EE EFE

F22163R ZMERGAFBHRER—HD -

The notes on pages 62 to 163 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Income Statement

=l

For the year ended 31 March 2012 BZE—Z——F=A=+—HLFE

2012 2011
—E-C-F —E——%F
HK$ 000 HK$' 000
FTET FHET
Revenue Wz 26 1,241,997 1,191,058
Cost of sales 5B B A 29 (1,076,720) (1,028,540)
Gross profit EF 165,277 162,518
Other income H o g A 27 1,586 716
Other gains, net Hilzs - F88 28 4,034 1,607
Distribution and selling expenses DIERIHEER 29 (14,005) (13,659)
General and administrative expenses — M RITHEEEH 29 (56,930) (49,366)
Operating profit g 99,962 101,816
Finance income A& WA 30 3,224 1,581
Finance costs A& AR 30 (1,343) (1,031)
Finance income — net BmBEWA—FE 30 1,881 550
Profit before income tax B AT 15 B A& 7 101,843 102,366
Income tax expense TSR 31 (8,757) (11,928)
Profit for the year FREF 93,086 90,438
Attributable to: EEN:

Owners of the Company KRRFBEE 32 93,252 90,438
Non-controlling interests FEVE I A 2 (166) -
93,086 90,438

Earnings per share for profit FARNEFEBARAR

attributable to the owners FT A & FE (k& T
of the Company during the year w2 i & 7

— Basic (HK cents) —E AR GBI 33 34.26 33.51
— Diluted (HK cents) —#58 OB () 33 34.18 33.32

The notes on pages 62 to 163 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Dividends

Es)

F2R13A L MERGEMBRER -7 °

34

46,290 57,056
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
e AR

For the year ended 31 March 2012 82 —Z——_F=A=+—HLFE

2012 AN
—E——fF —E——4F
HKS$' 000 HK$' 000
FERT FAL
Profit for the year FREA 93,086 90,438
Other comprehensive income: Hit2EBA :
Exchange differences arising on BEGING B R R B IREK
translation of foreign subsidiaries FTEAE X =58 4,995 5,329
Exchange reserve released upon P B R NG B 1 R
disposal of a foreign subsidiary B IE B S (430) =
Fair value (loss)/gain on HHEVEEEZ
available-for-sale financial asset NTE(ER) W (275) 275
Other comprehensive income FRNEMEZEKA -
for the year, net of tax R BEIE 4,290 5,604
Total comprehensive income FRAEZHEBALE
for the year 97,376 96,042
Attributable to: BERN:
Owners of the Company RKAGIIBE 97,542 96,042
Non-controlling interests FEPE B M i (166)
97,376 96,042

The notes on pages 62 to 163 are an integral part of these EE2R13E 2N AG A SRR —3 D -
consolidated financial statements.

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

= A fEE > A4 i‘%
w3 T J/:Eﬁ_x@]
For the year ended 31 March 2012 BZE—Z——F=A=+—HLFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

KARAMEEER
Non-
Share Other Retained controlling
capital reserves earnings interest Total
B& Rt  REEN  FRHMER oL
HK$' 000 HKS$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HKS' 000
THT THIL T THR THTL
Balance at 1 April 2010 R-B-ZEMA-A
&R 24,252 103,237 203,119 - 330,608
Profit for the year ER R - - 90,438 - 90,438
Exchange difference arising on REFHNIBAR
translation of foreign subsidiaries FEEERZSR - 5,329 - - 5,329
Fair value gain on available-for-sale ~ FIEHERKEE L
financial assets NTERS - 275 - - 275
Total comprehensive income 2EUARE - 5,604 90,438 - 96,042
Transactions with owners: BRBEAZENRS
Bonus issue of shares TR 2457 (2,457) - - -
Employee share option scheme: EEBREE -
Value of employee services EERB2EE - 598 - - 598
Proceeds from shares issued TRBRERZTRG
upon exercise of options LR 465 3782 - - 4,047
Dividends paid BERKRE = = (29,537) - (29,537)
Balance at 31 March 2011 R-B--¥zZfA=1-H
LA 21174 110,764 264,020 - 401958
Profit for the year FER & - - 93,252 (166) 93,086
Exchange difference arising on REFHNIB AR
translation of foreign subsidiaries FEEERZSR - 4,99 - - 4,995
Exchange reserve released upon RIEE RN B R o]k
disposal of a foreign subsidiary BHELGEE - (430) = = (430)
Fair value loss on available-forsale  AItHEHMKEE L
financial assets NYEEE = (275) = - (275)
Total comprehensive income 2HABAEE - 4,290 93,252 (166) 97,376
Transactions with owners: BREBEAZENRE
Employee share option scheme; EEERETE
Value of employee services EERB2EE - 125 - - 125
Proceeds from shares issued TRBRERZTRG
upon exercise of options LFEHIE 55 320 - - 375
Dividends paid BERKRE = = 62,628) - (62,628)
Balance at 31 March 2012 R-E-Z£=A=1-H
LER 21,229 115,499 294,644 (166) 437,206

The notes on pages 62 to 163 are an integral part of these E62R163BE 2 RFE T BHRE—H 5 -
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
mEeRenExR

For the year ended 31 March 2012 82 —Z——_F=A=+—HLFE

2012 AN
—E--f —E——F
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FERT FET
(As restated)
(&%)
Cash flows from operating REXEBCRERE
activities
Cash generated from operations KREEBEECRE 36 104,636 102,382
Interest paid [SENPAESN (1,343) (1,031)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREEREN (9,540) (9.712)
Mainland Chinese corporate EfPEPEMEE
income tax paid (2,802) (3,255)
Net cash generated from REXLBESE 2R FH
operating activities 90,951 88,384
Cash flows from investing REFEHz2HERE
activities
Purchases of property, plant BEWME  BELRKHE
and equipment (15,821) (18,078)
Proceeds from disposals of HEME  BERZHEZ
property, plant and equipment FT1S 58 36 - 327
Purchase of available-for-sale BANHREENBHEE
financial asset - (3,875)
Purchase of financial assets at BARAFELABRZZ
fair value through profit or loss Mg EE (3,686) (11,424)
Purchase of bonds investments BAGSFRE - (14,011)
Increase in long-term loan receivable & HA & X & Ue 7k T8 £ N (16,250) -
Increase in interests in associates NN o Ews: i ] (1,733) -
Increase in amount due from JRE L Bt 8 2 B FRIB S N
an associated company (267) -
Interest received B HE 3,224 1,581
Net cash used in investing activities R EEBFTA 2R F58 (34,533) (45,480)

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Cash flows from financing
activities

Proceeds from issuance of shares

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

n‘/_\é}’ﬁ éE ;/ﬁli % %

For the year ended 31 March 2012 BZE—Z——F=A=+—HLFE

METBH RERE

1T R AR AR B AT D

2012 2011
—B--f —T—%
HK$ 000 HK$" 000
FAT

(As restated)
(E31)

TER

61

upon exercise of share options Z TS EIE 375 4,247
Proceeds from long-term bank loans ~ KHISRTTERFTEFHIE - 20,000
Repayment of long-term bank loans ~ EE RHEITER (11,023) (9,642)
(Decrease)/increase in trust receipts S rERIBEFITE XK

bank loans CR ) /50 (3.392) 1,285
Dividends paid EfRE (62,628) (29,537)
Net cash used in financing Bt & 5EE T A

activities ZREFEE (76,668) (13,647)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ReERREEEY

and cash equivalents CR) /e (20,250) 29,257
Effect of changes in foreign EXxFHTE

exchange rates 3,060 4,463
Cash and cash equivalents, RERREFEEY -

beginning of year F4 161,149 127,429
Cash and cash equivalents, ReLREEFEEY -

end of year FR 143,959 161,149

The notes on pages 62 to 163 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

E2E13EZMERGEFBRER -7 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B &R MI 5T

GENERAL INFORMATION

Suga International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in
Bermuda on 28 September 2001. The Company's shares have
been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 18 September 2002.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (together, “the Group”) are principally
engaged in the research and development, manufacturing and
sales of electronic products, moulds and plastic products. The
Group has operations mainly in Hong Kong, Mainland China and
Macao.

The address of the Company's registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated. These financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 26 June 2012.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied for all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"). They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
inclusion of fair value of available-for-sale financial asset
and financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative financial instruments) at fair value through profit
or loss.

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
= & BB &8 AR 23
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, and areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) New and amended standards, and
interpretations mandatory for the first time for
the financial year beginning 1 April 2011 but not
currently relevant to the Group (although they
may affect the accounting for future transactions
and events)

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 32 (Amendment) Classification of Rights Issues

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Limited Exemption from Comparative
HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adopters

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 (Amendment) Prepayments of a Minimum Funding

Requirement

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with
Equity Instruments

Annual Improvement Projects Improvements to HKFRS (2010)

Third improvements to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (2010) were issued in May 2010 by
HKICPA. All improvements are effective in the
financial year of 2011.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B &R MI 5T

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF 2 BEEETHRME®E)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) . 21 REEE ()

(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations ) EBMER_-E——FMH
have been issued but are not effective for the — H 45,2 81 F B el R
financial year beginning 1 April 2011 and have U AN EAELERIRAZ
not been early adopted FIETZER - (55T K2 FE
e HKAS 1 (Amendment) “Presentation of Items o EHHESER|IE1G (BT

of Other Comprehensive Income”, effective for R HEME2EBAER 22
annual period beginning on or after 1 July 2012. Bl T ——F 4+ H—
%ﬂZ?ﬁEﬂﬁéZﬁE%ﬁF’gﬁE

e HKAS 12 (Amendment) “Deferred Tax: Recovery o BERGAEREI2R EF]
of Underlying Assets”, effective for annual A) BRI : WEIHEEE
period beginning on or after 1 January 2012. El R-TB——F—Ff—

Ellﬁkz?éﬁaﬂﬁé FEHBE

e HKAS 19 (Amendment) “Employee Benefits”, o BFGFERIE195 (BE]
effective for annual period beginning on or after R)IEERF] M_F
1 January 2013. —=F—A— A% z&FR

2 FEHBAER -

e HKAS 27 (Revised 2011) “Separate Financial o FAGHEAUFTR(ZT
Statements”, effective for annual period ——FEETIR) [ 8 3 B 7 3R
beginning on or after 1 January 2013. =l RN_T—=F—H—

lil(ﬁz%:ﬁfﬂﬁé FEHBE

e HKAS 28 (Revised 2011) “Investments in o FAEGHEAFENRE (=T
Associates and Joint Ventures”, effective for ——FETTHR) [ H B o
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2HRE]  M_T—=%F
2013. —A-BHYZRRBZFE

HARE A 2K o

e HKAS 32 (Amendment) “Offsetting Financial o FAEGERFENRR (BF]
Assets and Financial Liabilities”, effective for R eREEMETRBERN
annual period beginning on or after 1 January EHEEE] KT —-=%F
2013. —H—HaZRFARZER

HARE A 2K o

e HKFRS 1 (Amendment) “Severe Hyperinflation o FEEMBHRESEINE IR (B
and Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time HESI:EL Y4
Adopters”, effective for annual period beginning MEBCEEE AE] - =
on or after 1 July 2011, T-——F+ A AR &

162 F R AER

e HKFRS 1 (Amendment) “Government Loans”, o EAMBHEEAEIR(E
effective for annual period beginning on or AR BEEE]  R=F
before 1 January 2013 —=F—F—HAskz%&RAR

ZEEHREEMY -

e  HKFRS 7 (Amendment) “Disclosures — Transfers o ABUBHMESERETHR (B
of Financial Assets”, effective for annual period AR BE cmiEESE
beginning on or after 1 July 2011. Bl R_E——F+H—

@E@Z?ﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁé FEHEE
ﬁ(‘ o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New standards, amendments and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 April 2011 and have
not been early adopted (Continued)

e HKFRS 7 (Amendment) “Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities”,
effective for annual period beginning on or after
1 January 2013.

e HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, effective for
annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2015.

e  HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”,
effective for annual period beginning on or after
1 January 2013.

e HKFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”, effective for
annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2013.

e HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities”, effective for annual period beginning
on or after 1 January 2013.

e HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurements”, effective
for annual period beginning on or after 1
January 2013.

e HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 "Stripping Costs in the
Production Phase of a Surface Mine”, effective
for annual period beginning on or after 1
January 2013.

B RS R AR M 7T
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B &R MI 5T

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations

have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 April 2011 and have not
been early adopted (Continued)

Management is in the process of making an
assessment of the likely impact of these changes
but is not yet in a position to state whether any
substantial changes to the Group's significant
accounting policies and presentation of the financial
statements will result.

2.2 Consolidation

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more
than one half of the voting rights. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued
by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred. ldentifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
acquiree s identifiable net assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B iR IR M5+

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF 2 EESTHBEMES)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

22 RERE (&)
(a) BE 2\ A] (&)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as transactions with the
owners in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are
also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS RERMI 7T

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated but
considered an indicator of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the company on the basis of
dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group's investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(c) Associates (Continued)

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
‘share of profit/(loss) of an associate in the consolidated
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in
associates are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS RERMI 7T

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(d) Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture in which
the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity which is subject to joint control and none of
the participating parties has unilateral control over
the economic activity.

The Group's interest in jointly controlled entities
are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The
Group’s share of its jointly controlled entities” post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the
income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group's share of losses in a jointly controlled
entity equals or exceeds its interest in the jointly
controlled entity, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the jointly controlled entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interest in the jointly controlled
entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
jointly controlled entities have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Executive Directors collectively who make
strategic decisions.

24

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which is the Company's
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS RERMI 7T

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of equity.

When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or
sold, such exchange differences are recognised in the
income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B iR IR M5+

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF 2
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment

B BEBE &)

25 W% BERRE

Leasehold land interests classified as finance lease and all
other property, plant and equipment is stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest
becomes available for its intended use. Amortisation on
leasehold land classified as finance lease and depreciation
of other assets are calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate costs less residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land classified as finance lease 38 years
Buildings 35-40 years
Leasehold improvements 5-10 years
Plant and machinery 5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amounts and are recognised in the
income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS RERMI 7T

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

2.8

Land use rights
Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Land use rights are
amortised using the straight-line method over the period of
the land use rights.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of
the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary/
associate/jointly controlled entity at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisition of
an associate is included in investment in an associate.
Separately recognised goodwill is tested for impairment
and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains and
losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying
amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose identified
according to operating segment (Note 2.8).

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates, jointly controlled entities and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example
goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are
tested at least annually for impairment. Assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.9 Financial assets

(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale.
The classification depends on the purposes for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the short term. Derivatives are classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as hedges.
Assets in this category are classified as current
assets if expected to be settled within 12 months;
otherwise, they are classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months
after the balance sheet date which are classified
as non-current assets. Loans and receivables
comprise trade and other receivables, bonds
investments and amount due from a jointly
controlled entity and cash and cash equivalents
in the balance sheets (Note 2.11 and 2.12).

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12
months of the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS RERMI 7T

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)
(b) Recognition and measurement

(c)

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the “financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss’ category are recognised in the income statement
in the period in which they arise.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in the
consolidated income statement.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B iR IR M5+

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF 2 EEESHBRBE#)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
29 BBEE (&)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)
(d) Impairment of financial assets (d) BIBEEEHE

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
recognised only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
“loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
asset’s carrying amount is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the income statement. If, in
a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
income statement.

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. For equity investments classified as
available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is also
evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such
evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is
removed from equity and recognised in the separate
consolidated income statement. Impairment losses
recognised in the separate consolidated income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the separate consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS RERMI 7T

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out (FIFO) method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labor, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

2.11 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

2.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B iR IR M5+

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF 2
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.14Trade and other payables

EZEEHRBEE)

2ERESRIRREMENSRK

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer).
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

2.15Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.

2.16 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised directly in other comprehensive income or
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries and associates operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS RERMI 7T

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liahility
in a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B iR IR M5+

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF 2 BEESTBEBE S
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.17 Employee benefits 217 EEER

(a) Pension obligations (a) BIKELEM

The Group operates a number of defined contribution
pension schemes for its employees. The pension
plans are funded by payments from employees
and by the Group. The Group’s contributions to the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme established under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance are expensed as incurred. The assets are
held separately from those of the Group and managed
by related independent professional fund managers.

For employees in Mainland China, the Group contributes
on a monthly basis to various defined contribution
retirement benefit plans organised by relevant municipal
and provincial governments based on specified
percentages of the relevant employees’ monthly
salaries. The municipal and provincial governments
undertake to assume the retirement benefit obligations
of all existing and future retired employees under these
plans and the Group has no further obligation for post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions made.
Contributions to these plans are expensed as incurred.

For employees in Macao, the Group contributes to
a defined contribution retirement plan organised
by the Macao government based on the amount as
stipulated by the relevant rules and regulations.
The Macao government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired employees under the retirement plan
and the Group has no further obligation for post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions made.
Contributions to this plan are expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS RERMI 7T

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans, under which
the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of
the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted:

i) including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity's share price);

ii) excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

iii) including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to vest. The total expense
is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. In addition, in some
circumstances employees may provide services in
advance of the grant date and therefore the grant
date fair value is estimated for the purposes of
recognising the expense during the period between
service commencement period and grant date. At the
end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected
to vest based on the non-marketing performance and
service conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in the income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Share-based compensation (Continued)
When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium.

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings,
with a corresponding credit to equity.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Other benefits

Other directors’ and employees’ obligations are
recorded as a liability and charged to the income
statement when the Group is contractually obliged
or when there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

2.18 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS RERMI 7T

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.18 Provisions (Continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations is small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.19 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods in the ordinary
course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities
as described below. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

(a) Sales of goods

The group manufactures and sells a range of
electronic, moulds and plastic products in the
wholesale market. Sales of goods are recognised
when a group entity has delivered products to the
customer, the customer has accepted the products,
the amount of sales can be reliably measured and it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the entities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. When
a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being
the estimated future cash flow discounted at the
original effective interest rate of the instrument, and
continues unwinding the discount as interest income.
Interest income on impaired loans is recognised using
the original effective interest rate.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

2.20 Leases

(a)

(b)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor
are classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor), including upfront payment made for
leasehold land and land use rights, are charged in the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair
value of the leased property and the present value of
the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance charges
so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance
lease balance outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
current and non-current borrowings. The interest
element of the finance cost is recognised in the
income statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.
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B RS RERMI 7T

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Financial guarantees

A financial guarantee (a kind of insurance contract) is
a contract that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a
debt instrument. The Group does not recognise liabilities
for financial guarantee at inception, but performs a liability
adequacy test at each reporting date by comparing its
net liability regarding the financial guarantee with the
amount that would be required if the financial guarantee
would result in a present legal or constructive obligation.
If the liahility is less than its present legal or constructive
obligation amount,the entire difference is recognised in
the income statement immediately.

2.22 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially measured
at fair value on the date the derivative contracts are
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair
values. The method of recognising the resulting gain or
loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as
a hedged instrument, and if so, the nature of item being
hedged.

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had not designated any
derivatives as hedging instruments. Changes in fair values
of derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
being included in the consolidated income statement as
“other gains, net”.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company's owners is
recognised as a liability in the Group's financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders in case of final
dividend and the Company's directors in case of interim
dividend.

2.24 Contingent liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognised
but is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS RERMI 7T

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk. The Group's
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s performance.

(i)  Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and
Mainland China and its business transactions, assets
and liabilities are principally denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, US dollars and Renminbi (“RMB").
Foreign currency risk arises when future commercial
transactions or recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity’'s
functional currency. As Hong Kong dollars are pegged
against US dollars, management considers that the
Group is mainly exposed to foreign currency risk
with respect to RMB. Management will continue
to monitor foreign currency exchange exposure
and will take measures to minimise the currency
translation risk. As at 31 March 2012 apart from
certain non-deliverable forward foreign exchange
contracts entered into with commercial banks which
were stated at fair value, the Group has not used
any financial instruments to hedge against foreign
currency risk. The exchange rate of RMB to foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
Mainland Chinese Government.

As at 31 March 2012 and 2011, if both Hong Kong
dollars and US dollars strengthen/weakened by 5%
against RMB with all other variables held constant,
the post-tax profit for each year would have changed
mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains
on translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies of the relevant
group companies.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(if)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Post-tax profit increase/(decrease) Bk % 18 5% /1 o0, R 4)

—F1E5%
— B {B5%

— Strengthen 5%
— Weakened 5%

B R R AR 7

BRERERE &)
31 EBEBEEE)
(i) SMNERE (&)

2012 2011
—_E—_F

—ET——F
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FET

2,698 4,207
(2,698) (4,207)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates and the Group has no significant
interest-bearing assets except for the long-term
loan receivable and cash and cash equivalents,
details of which are disclosed in Notes 17 and 19.
The Group's interest rate risk primarily relates to its
bank borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. The Group currently does not have a hedging
policy in respect of the interest rate risk. However,
management monitors the related interest rate risk
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
interest rate risk exposure should the need arise. The
interest rates and terms of repayment of borrowings
are disclosed in Note 21.

The Group has no fixed interest rate borrowings.
Therefore it does not have any fair value interest rate
risk.

At 31 March 2012 and 2011, if the interest rates on
bank borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/
lower than the prevailing interest rate, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$133,000 (2011: HK$193,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expense on floating rate bank borrowings.
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B RS RERMI 7T

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. The Group's
financial assets are trade and other receivables,
derivative financial instruments, amount due from
a jointly controlled entity and cash at banks. The
amounts of those assets stated in the consolidated
balance sheet represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

The Group’s credit risk is concentrated on a number
of major and long established customers. Trade
receivables from the top five customers amounted
to approximately 54% of the Group’s total trade
receivables. The Group has policies in place to ensure
that sales are made to customers with appropriate
credit histories and to limit the amount of credit
exposure to any individual customer. The Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade receivable at each balance sheet date to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. The Group’s past experience
in collection of trade receivables falls within the
recorded allowances. In order to minimise credit risk
to the Group, the Group has certain non-recourse
factoring arrangement with banks to cover the credit
risk.

The credit risk on cash at banks is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
Transactions in relation to derivative financial
instruments, if any, are only carried out with financial
institutions of high reputation. The Group has palicies
that limit the amount of credit exposure to any one
financial institution.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iii) Credit risk (Continued)

(iv)

For loans and receivables, balances due from
the jointly controlled entity, an associate and
subsidiaries, the Group regularly monitors the
financial positions of these companies to assess their
recoverability.

No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting
period, and management does not expect any losses
from non-performance by these counterparties.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities. The Group
manages its liquidity risk by controlling the level
of inventories, closely monitoring the turnover
days of receivables, monitoring its working capital
requirements and keeping credit lines available.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group’s bank facilities and cash and cash equivalents
on the basis of expected cash flows.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities and net-settled derivative
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet
date to the contractual maturity date. Derivative
financial liabilities are included in the analysis if
their contractual maturities are essential for an
understanding of the timing of the cash flows. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.
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B &R MI 5T

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BRRERER S
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BIEREZE &)
(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) 7B &L (&)
Group rEE

Between Between
Less than 1and 2 2and 5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total

PR—F —EWF MELF HBILF &t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$ 000
TET TET TAExT TAET TARL

31 March 2012 —E-=F
=A=+—H
Trade payables B8 RN 159,115 - - - 159,115
Other payables and H A [l - 5/ 1B
accruals NIEETER 20,757 - - - 20,757
Borrowings BE 9,753 4,688 9,000 9,799 33,240
189,625 4,688 9,000 9,799 213,112
31 March 2011 —B2-—-fF
=A=+—H
Trade payables FERTE 5 HRK 163,477 - - - 153,477
Other payables and H A i - 5K I
accruals MESTEB A 16,146 — — — 16,146
Borrowings BE 13,149 13,120 9,000 14,196 49,465
182,772 13,120 9,000 14196 219,088
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued)
Company

B R R AR 7

3 BBEBREREE)
31 BEBEEE)
(iv] HEE xR (&)
AAR

Between Between

93

Less than 1 and 2 2and 5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
PR—F —ZEZWMFE —EZ1hF BBEIEF &t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$ 000
TEx FET FTER  TER FAET
31 March 2012 —E-—_F
=A=t+-—H
Other payables and H b & 1 ;K18
accruals RIETEA 2,242 - - - 2,242
31 March 2011 —g——fF
=A=t+-—H
Other payables and H b &1 5RIB
accruals KEGER 1,986 - - - 1,986

3.2 Capital risk management
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debts.
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B &R MI 5T

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt to
equity ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings
divided by total equity as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet.

3

MERRER &)

32 EXRKBER (&)
AEEZABHERLERE
LR B EBBERGEE
FIRi@rEmat® o

ERER

2012 2011

—E--F —ZT——%F

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

FET FET

Total bank borrowings RITEEEE 31,839 46,254
Total equity etk 437,206 401,958
Debt to equity ratio BEHESEX 7.3% 11.5%

The decrease in the debt to equity ratio resulted primarily
from the decrease of bank borrowings for financing
working capital.

3.3 Fair value estimation
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

e [nputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2).

e |nputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).
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B &SRR MI 5T

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MHREAKRERE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 33 AFEMR/FTE)
The following table presents the Group’s assets and TREWNAEENR - ZT——FR-F
liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 March 2012 ——FE=A=+—HEATFEFEZ
and 2011: BERGE-
2012 —E2-=fF

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—R FZR E=R a&t

HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
FERT TR FERT FERT

Assets: BE:
Available-for-sale financial At EMEEE

asset - - 2,679 2,679
Financial assets at fair value A FEZABEZ

through profit or loss MGEE 6,993 7,762 - 14,755
Derivative financial fTEeRTA

instruments - 853 - 853
Total Assets BEERE 6,993 8,615 2,679 18,287
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B &R MI 5T

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BMEERERE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 33 AV EMR/EFE)
2011 —T——%F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F— FH& F= A5
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FET FETT FETT FAET
Assets: BE
Available-for-sale financial A {ft H & Bt # & &
asset - - 4,150 4,150
Financial assets at fair value XA FELZABRZ
through profit or loss MEEE 3,674 7,807 — 11,481
Derivative financial MTEEMTA
instruments - 498 - 498
Total Assets EEBE 3,674 8,305 4,150 16,129
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TRERNE=-QRIENEHEE-_ZT——
instruments for the year ended 31 March 2012 and 2011. FR-_E——F=A=+—HItFE
2012 2011
—E--fF —ET——%F
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FERT FATT
At 1 April WA —H 4,150 -
Additions VINE - 3,875
Fair value (loss)/gain NEE(EBB) M (275) 275
Impairment loss (Note 28) BB E5 18 (FT7E28) (1,196) -
At 31 March R=ZA=+—H 2,679 4,150

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date. A market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's
length basis. The quoted market price is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in level 1 which
comprise primarily equity investments classified as trading
securities or available for sale. The Group's listed bond
under financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
as at 31 March 2012 is level 1 financial asset and its fair
value is determined by the quoted price in active market.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. The
Group's foreign currency exchange notes under financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss and derivative
financial instruments above are level 2 financial assets
or instruments and their fair value are determined with
reference to quotations provided by various banks.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level
3. The Group’s available-for-sale financial asset as at 31
March 2012 above is level 3 financial asset and its fair
value is determined by reference to the net asset value of
the fund as determined by the fund administrator.
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B &R MI 5T

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Income taxes

The Group is subject to various taxes in a number
of jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current income tax and
deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences are recognised when management considers
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses
can be utilised. When the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax charges
in the period in which such estimate is changed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Estimated write-downs of inventories to net
realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of inventories.
Write-downs of inventories are recorded where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be realised. The identification of write-downs requires
the use of judgement and estimates. These estimates are
based on the correct market condition and the historical
experience of selling prices of similar nature. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories
and write-downs of inventories in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

Estimated provision for impairment of trade
receivables and other receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade
receivables and other receivables based on an assessment
of the recoverability of trade receivables and other
receivables. Provisions are applied to trade receivables
and other receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. For trade receivables, the assessments is
based on the credit history of its customers and the current
market condition, and requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of trade receivables and impairment is recognised
in the year in which such estimate has been changed. For
other receivables, the provision was made by reference to
the difference between the carrying amount of the other
receivables and the present value of estimated future cash
flows.
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B RS RERMI 7T

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Fair value of financial assets and derivative
financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and derivative financial
instruments that are traded in an active market are
determined by the quoted market prices.

For the fair values of financial assets and derivative
financial instruments not traded in an active market, the
Group would use the quoted price provided by counterparty
to estimate the fair values. The methodologies, models
and assumptions used in valuing these financial assets
and derivative financial instruments require judgement by
management which are mainly based on market conditions
existing at each balance sheet date.

Employee benefits — share-based payments

The determination of the fair value of the share options
granted requires estimates in determining, among others,
the expected volatility of the share price, the expected
dividend vyield, the risk-free interest rate for the life of
the option, and the number of options that are expected
to become exercisable as stated in Note 24. Where the
outcome of the number of options that are exercisable
is different, such difference will impact the consolidated
income statement in the subsequent remaining vested
period of the relevant share options.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.7. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-in-
use calculations prepared on the basis of management's
assumptions and estimates (Note 8). These calculations
require the use of estimates.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
Executive Directors of the Group (collectively referred to as the
“CODM") that make strategic decisions. The CODM reviews the
internal reporting of the Group in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. Management has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.

The CODM considers the business from a product perspective
and assesses separately the performance of electronic products,
and moulds and plastics products.

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of the results of reportable segments.
Finance income and costs, corporate income and expenses and
fair value gain/(loss) of financial assets are not included in
the results for each operating segment that is reviewed by the
CODM. Other information provided to the CODM is measured in
a manner consistent with that in the financial statements.

Revenue from external customers is shown after elimination of
inter-segment revenue. Sales between segments are carried
out at mutually agreed terms. The revenue from external parties
reported to CODM is measured in a manner consistent with that
in the consolidated income statement.

Assets of reportable segments exclude deferred income tax
assets, tax recoverable, available-for-sale financial assets, bond
investments, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
long-term loan receivable, interests in associates and corporate
assets, all of which are managed on a central basis. Liabilities
of reportable segment exclude current and deferred income
tax liabilities and corporate liabilities. These are part of the
reconciliation to total balance sheet assets and liabilities.

Bt RS R AR M5t

TREHR

TELERRARRE RSIEHRIORE 2
AEERTEFE (U THRBIETELERE
AD - TBEBERRABRAEENR
EUFERBEMDEER - EEEIRE

A S o M "
HEREEELEDE -

TBLERRANRERABERRTEBMR
N REBEETERALBRAREBEMRZ
RID RIEITRIE ©

TELERRARBAIZHRDBEETE
AEREDBZRER - BEWARKAK
RARARFRSXIAR A B EE R FERS
S (BR)BTHATELERRAER
LERENBRE - AETREERRAR
2z HthE PR B R — Rz 7 A

=
= °

FER 290 R E P IS E B35 RAIK
i D BEHE RS BEERES - [
EBBBRENERZ SN LRGSR
CEVEE S SRS

ERNBEETEREG—ELEEHEZE
RS HAE AT EIRIE - Al &8
BEE EFRE BRAFERLRARIEZ
MBEE  REEFEEFE REER
Al BN RREE RS BABETE
BRBNELERERARERARIAE - &
FEENRAERBREERBZHRED
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 2BERE)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the BhE I — T — —= _ _F=
reportable segments for the year ended 31 March 2012 and i’t%_igfﬂgégﬁggmig;@;;

2011 is as follows:

ARBEZHBERDT
2012
Moulds and
Electronic ER
products products Elimination
EAR
EYER DBER EIE ]
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT FET FET
Revenue g
Revenue from external customers %) 3& & B U &8 1,193,273 48,724 - 1,241,997
Inter-segment revenue o E R - 8,496 (8,496) -
1,193,273 57,220 (8,496) 1,241,997
Results of reportable segments  F] 2 85 ¥4 93,853 3,701 - 97,554
A reconciliation of results of FEX R ES i
reportable segments to profit FRHMNZHEWOT :
for the year is as follows:
Results of reportable segments ~ A] 2 R H fB 45 97,554
Unallocated expenses ROBUA 138
Other income HEA 1,586
Other gains, net Hiblizs - F58 684
Operating profit il 99,962
Finance income BEUWA 3,224
Finance costs BE R AR (1,343)
Profit before income tax B P15 2 A& A 101,843
Income tax expense FIefmA X (8,757)
Profit for the year F R F 93,086

2012
—E—_F
Moulds and
Electronic plastic

products products Other Total
HEE segments

EfEm ¥2RBEm HttoE G

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FHERT FTHER THER THERT

Other segment information Hithn BER

Depreciation on property, ME - BEREETE

plant and equipment 8,478 2,162 3,113 13,753
Amortisation of land use rights = 3t { 5 #E #4 44 - 57 80 137
Additions to non-current assets FERBEEZANE

(other than interests in (REBtE N R 2R -

associates, financial assets PBEENR

and deferred tax assets) EERIBEERIN 14,744 999 78 15,821
Income tax expense FEHAX 7,462 737 558 8,757

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
£ & B E B F R 2 A
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

5 oEER#E)

Moulds and
Electronic plastic
products products  Elimination
RAR
EfER 2BE® ¥ 58
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
FET FAT FAT
Revenue Wz
Revenue from external customers MK & B Uk 35 1,137,249 53,809 - 1,191,058
Inter-segment revenue o HEE R - 12,410 (12,410) -
1,137,249 66,219 (12,410) 1,191,058
Results of reportable segments  °] 2 H{ D FEEE 90,481 8,251 - 98,732
A reconciliation of results of ME2moBFEER
reportable segments to profit FRRMNZEHERAT -
for the year is as follows:
Results of reportable segments  F] 2D B EE 98,732
Unallocated income RORZH 761
Other income HagA 716
Other gains, net Hblzs - F58 1,607
Operating profit e g Al 101,816
Finance income BMEUWA 1,681
Finance costs A& A AR (1,031)
Profit before income tax BR P15 2% A& A 102,366
Income tax expense SRR (11,928)
Profit for the year F N 90,438

Other segment information
Depreciation on property,
plant and equipment
Amortisation of land use rights
Additions to non-current assets
(other than financial assets
and deferred tax assets)
Income tax expense

Hitvp HEHR
E RN

1 {5 P A B 5
FRBEEZANE
(758 E MIEENIR
BEKRIN)
FIR B X

REITE

Electronic

products

EfEmM

HK$" 000
THET

6,424

14,538
10,212

Moulds and
plastic
products
BAR

2B H/ F ==y ]|
HK$' 000
TET

2,417
515

1,096
1,853

segments

H 18
HK$' 000

2,951 11,792
80 135
2,444 18,078
(137) 11,928
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 AEER#E)
The segment assets and segment liabilities as at 31 March and R=A=1t—H o EEERDEAEBER
the reconciliation to the total assets and total liabilities are as EEMAEBLBGHREYHENT
follows:
2012
—E—_F
Moulds and
Electronic plastic
products products Total
EAR
ETER ¥2BER a5t
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TERT TET TET
Segment assets DEEE 515,814 43,072 558,886
Deferred income tax assets BEMEREE 3,665
Tax recoverable G 4EE 400
Unallocated: RAOBEL :
Property, plant and equipment M - BEREE 51,965
Interests in associates N RN s 1,733
Long-term loan receivable & B E R WGRE 16,250
Other investments Hinig & 31,708
Other unallocated assets Hiv R D REE 2,854
Total assets per consolidated mEEEARRK
balance sheet FIREEBE 667,461
Segment liabilities NEAF 171,320 5,926 177,246
Income tax payable FEAS TS AR% 15,737
Deferred income tax liabilities BXEFMBHMAR 2,807
Unallocated: RABEL :
Bank borrowings RITEE 31,839
Other unallocated liabilities Hp KD B E 2,626
Total liabilities per consolidated mEEEARRK
balance sheet FiRBEEHE 230,255

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
£ & B &E B A R 2 A
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 SEER#E)

Electronic
products

ETEM
HKS$' 000
THET

2011
—E——F
Moulds and
JER
products Total
BAR
BREm &t
HK$' 000 HK$" 000
TAT TAT

Segment assets DEEE 508,185 41,517 549,702
Deferred income tax assets EEFTEMEE 1,888
Tax recoverable A U= B IE 366
Unallocated: RAOBEC
Property, plant and equipment ME - BREREE 52,579
Other investments Htig & 29,642
Other unallocated assets HibRDELEE 3,594
Total assets per consolidated mEBEEARR

balance sheet FInEERE 637,771
Segment liabilities DEAE 164,286 6,576 170,862
Income tax payable AN 17,661
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEFBHARE 2,275
Unallocated: RAOHE :
Bank borrowings RITEE 42,862
Other unallocated liabilities HitRD AR 2,153
Total liabilities per consolidated mMEBEERARR

balance sheet FIRBEEE 235,813
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Bt RS R R A

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
The Company is domiciled in Bermuda. An analysis of the
Group’s revenue from external customers by country for the year
ended 31 March 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

TRER(#)
ARBPRBREEM AEEBRE—
——Ek-F——F=AZ= +—EI¢$F§*
RERE D ZIREPRAENITANT

2011

T—_F —E——%F

HK$' 000 HK$' 000

FExT FET

The United States of America EH 404,624 419,438
United Kingdom it 301,611 286,001
Japan =[N 256,426 209,312
PRC (including Hong Kong) HE(BERE) 116,516 96,495
Australia SEM 42,149 94,258
QOthers EHAi 120,671 85,554
1,241,997 1,191,058
An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets, excluding $E@&fﬂliiﬂ’ FERBEE(TBIE

deferred income tax assets, by geographical locations is as

BEFMBHEE) PTWOT

follows:
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FET FAET
Hong Kong B 75,763 86,992
Mainland China B K e 82,983 61,079
Macao B P 181 222
158,927 148,293
For the year ended 31 March 2012, four (2011: three) major HE-_ZT——F=A=1+—HIEFE %k
customers, each of which accounts for 10% or more of the B (ZE—F:=R)FER,EME
Group's external revenue. The revenue from these four (2011: ERANEE N 2R 2 10% 3K BA - o 5}55
three) customers is attributable to the segment of electronic ZOA(ZE—F: =R) TP KE
products and details are as follow: REEFERDE FBEWT :

2012 2011
Z— = ﬁi — Eg e E'E

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

FERT FAETT

Customer A XFH 268,194 254,107
Customer B XE L 146,223 201,782
Customer C EFER 189,298 180,727
Customer D EET 136,103 94,701
739,818 731,317

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
£ & B &E B A R 2 A
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

At 1 April 2010

R-Z2-ZFNMA-H

6 ME- BMERRE

Land and  Leasehold
buildings improvements
ik  HEWXR
BT 30
HK$' 000 HK$" 000
TER THET

Group
r&EE
Furniture

Plant and and
machinery  equipment
KR

I 1

HK$" 000
TRT

ERRRR
HKS" 000
THET

Cost KA 95,908 19970 103,053 33,050 251,981
Accumulated depreciation 2RNE (9,401) (17,725) (91,269) (27,694) (146,089)
Net book amount RE¥E 86,507 2,245 11,784 5,356 105,892
Yearended 31 March 2011 BZ-B-—-£=fA=+-H

LFE
Opening net book amount EMREFE 86,507 2,245 11,784 5,356 105,892
Additions RE 600 144 12,613 41 18,078
Disposals & = = (3) (2) (5)
Depreciation e (2,497) (645) (6,609) (2,041) (11,792)
Exchange differences & i 38 % 543 77 452 122 1,194
Closing net book amount FRREFE 85,153 2421 18,237 7,556 113,367
At 31 March 2011 RZZ--%=Zf=+-H
Cost BN 97124 21,690 118,518 37,047 274,319
Accumulated depreciation 2RENE (11.971) (19,269) (100,281) (29,491) (161,012)
Net book amount REZE 85,153 2.4 18,237 7,556 113,367
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6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 6 ¥ BERR®E#)

Group
*5E
Furniture
Landand  Leasehold Plant and and

buildings improvements  machinery  equipment
Tk  HEWR K&
BT 3 k#E HRRRE
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000
FHL FET FEL TER

Yearended 31 March 2012 HZ=-ZE-—-Ff=A=1+-H

LEE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 85,153 2421 18,237 7,556 113,367
Additions NE - 784 13,138 1,899 15,821
Disposals & - - (4) - (4)
Depreciation e (2,524) (625) (8,145) (2,459) (13,753)
Exchange differences B AR 416 68 646 117 1,247
Closing net book amount FRERFE 83,045 2,648 23,872 7,113 116,678
At 31 March 2012 R-Z--f=ZR=+-H
Cost KA 97,611 23,277 134,721 39,025 294,634
Accumulated depreciation 2RTE (14,566) (20,629) (110,849) (31.912) (177,956)
Net book amount REFE 83,045 2,648 23,872 7,113 116,678
Depreciation expense of HK$8,266,000 (2011: HK$6,638,000) ¥ & 1 %8,266,0008 T (ZF — — % -
has been expensed in cost of sales, and HK$5,487,000 (2011: 6,638,0007C) EREEK AN - ™
HK$5,154,000) has been expensed in general and administrative 5,487,000 7T (= Z — — 4 : 5,154,000/
expenses. T AR —BETHEEERAXH -

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
£ & B &E B A R 2 A
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
The Group's interests in land and buildings are analysed as
follows:

B R R AR 7

ME - BERRE @)

AEER T REF 2BENFTOT

Group
rEH
31 March 31 March
2012 2011
—E-C-F —E——%F
=A=+—-H =ZA=+—8H
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FER FET
In Hong Kong, held on REBFE
— lease between 10-50 years —HRF BN F10E505F 46,914 48,260
Outside Hong Kong, held on REBEBEINGE
— leases between 10-50 years —HAFHN T10250F 36,131 36,893

83,045 85,153

As at 31 March 2012, certain bank borrowings are secured on
land and buildings with a carrying amount of HK$46,914,000
(2011: HK$48,260,000) (Note 21).

WR-_TE——F=R=+—8 & TR
BB BREE 546,914,0008 L (—Z & ——
F : 48,260,000/ 7T) 2 T i R & FVEHK 3T
(Mf5E21) o
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Bt RS R R A

LAND USE RIGHTS
The Group’s interests in land use rights represented prepaid
operating lease payments and their movements and net book
value are analysed as follows:

7 LTHERAE

T

AEENTHEREZESAEERE
BNRIR - FRAZBLREFEZ DT

2012 2011

—F--F —F—F

HK$' 000 HK$' 000

FERT FAT

Beginning of the year REH] 4,225 4,267

Amortisation i (137) (135)

Exchange differences MEH ZR A 93

End of the year RELR 4,159 4,225
Outside Hong Kong, held on: REBEZEINTE

Leases of between 10 to 50 years HEFHN F10Z=505F 4,159 4,225

GOODWILL

Cost and net book amount

BRNSEAEID

2012
—E—_F

HK$’ 000
TER

1,059

2011
—FT——F
HK$' 000
FHET

1,059

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
£ & B %

B & R
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GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment test for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
(“CGU") identified according to operating segment.

A operating segment-level summary of the goodwill allocation
is presented below.

Electronic products EfEM

B R R AR 7

mE )

7 B B R A
BECREENENREC U2 AEE
REELEM ((ReELEM]) -

BEDECKREDEMEZINWT -

2011
—E——F

HK$’ 000
TER

HK$’ 000
THETT

1,059 1,059

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period.

Gross margin E R =
Growth rate # 5 &
Discount rate Ak 38 &

ReEE BNy IRESENREREE
HEEERE - FEHERBCERER
BORE R R M RIEE L 2 E R
BRI -

2012 2011
—EB-=-F —E——%F
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FHT FAET
18.0% 16.5%

5.0% 4.5%

5.0% 5.0%

The assumptions have been used for the analysis of the CGU
within the operating segment.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past
performance and their expectations for the market development.
The weighted average growth rates used are consistent with
the forecasts included in industry reports. The discount rates
used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the
relevant segments.

Based on discounted cash flow forecast prepared by
management, the directors are of the view that there is no
impairment of goodwill as at 31 March 2012 and 2011.

ARBREREAMELSBETREE
A -

EEERBEBERBLEMSER CRY
EEEMEREE - FTANEFHERRE
EAREZRA - - FIRAZRIAXRRD
BATM X - A RERABREI DB 2 I E R -

BREEEERUEEUHARSRERA
EERAR_T——_FR-ZT—F=A
=t HEBYLERE -
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9 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND 9 RHBATRZBREREWHE AT
AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES FE
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (a) AMBATIZRE
Company
AAT
2012 2011
—B-=F ZT——F
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
TERx TR
Investments, at costs KRE  BRRAE 65,974 65,849
The Directors are of the opinion that the underlying BE25 RNWBRARZRE B
value of investments in subsidiaries is not less than their BEIFTIPREN-"S——ER-F
carrying values as at 31 March 2012 and 2011. —— FE=A=+—HZEEME-
(b) Amounts due from subsidiaries (b) FEUEE B A B ZhE
The balances due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non- JRE Ut B B N B ERIE o A g T A
interest bearing and repayable on demand. The carrying @B RAREEINREE - EWHEBAT
values of the amounts due from subsidiaries approximate SEyEAEEEATEMAE -

their fair values.

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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9 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND 9
AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(c) Details of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company as at 31 March 2012 are as follows:

RHBLARA 2 REREBWHE QT

R (&)

(c) ARAFAR-F-—Z-F=A=1—
AzEEMBRRAFREON

Place of incorporation/
establishment and
kind of legal entity

ML/ L H
RERERER

Issued share
capital/paid-up
capital
BRfT/
BARK
2012
~B-Zf

Group equity interest

AEERGRAER

2011

“F——F

Principal activities
and place of operation

IRRBREXDY

Suga International Limited (vi) ~ British Virgin Islands, Ordinary shares 100% 100% Investment holding in
limited liability company USs700 Hong Kong
ABRAMS LRRI00ET REAREREER
BRAT
Suga Electronics (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary shares 100% 100% Trading of electronic products
Limited company HK§2 in Hong Kong
EEARAT] &8 BRAT LRRIET REBEEETEm
Suga Electronics Limited (i) Hong Kong, limited Ordinary shares 100% 100% Trading of electronic products
EEEFERAAI liability company HK$2 in Hong Kong
&8 BRAT LRRIET REBEEETEm
Non-voting 100% 100%
deferred shares
HK$4,000,000 ()
ERFHE
BTk R
4,000,000% 7c i)
Suga Electronics (Shenzhen) Mainland China, limited HK$33,500,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of electronic
Co., Ltd. {ii), (viii) liability company 33,500,000 7 products in Mainland China
BEEF ORI TE - FRAA RPBHEEfEm
BB (i) - (viil)
Suga Networks Hong Kong Hong Kong, limited Ordinary shares 100% 100% Trading of electronic products
Limited liability company HK$100,000 in Hong Kong
EERREEERAA &8 BRAT LBk REREEEfEm
100,000% 7
Suga Networks Equipment Mainland China, limited HK$17,500,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of electronic
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. liability company 17,500,007 70 products in Mainland China
("SNESL" i), (vl PE BRAA REBREEFER
EE@mEN (R
BRAR ((EERR

& 1) i)~ (vili)

Annual Report 2011/125 %



114

Notes to the Financial Statements
B &R MI 5T

9 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND 9 RHBARZEREREWKE DT

AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) FRIE (&)

(c) Details of the principal subsidiaries of the () ZATRN=-—B—=-—F=R=+—
Company as at 31 March 2012 are as follows: AzEFEMBARGFEEBNOT : (&)
(Continued)

Place of incorporation/ Issued share
establishment and capital/paid-up
kind of legal entity capital Principal activities
SR/ Rt BRfT/ Group equity interest  and place of operation
REEEREH BARE AEEEGRAES 2 TEERREXBE
2012 2011
“E-ZF
On Million Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary shares 100% 100% Property holding in
liability company HkS2 Hong Kong
b BRAT &8 BRAT LERIET REBRBNE
Typhoon International Limited British Virgin Islands, Ordinary shares 100% 100% Property holding in
limited liability company US$1 Mainland China
AERRBERAT EBRAES BRAR LRRER R ERENE
P&S Macao Commercial Macao, limited liability Ordinary shares 100% 100% Trading of pet products
Offshore Limited company MOP100,000 _in Macao
BERMBEFEERS R BRAT LRk . REFEEENER
ARAF 100,000 75 %
Pets & Supplies (Shenzhen) Mainland China, limited HK$10,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of pet products
Co, Ltd. ("PSSL") (v), {viii liability company 10,000,000 70 in Mainland China
WREX(RI)ARAE  #E ARAF RPEEEENER
(MR ()~ (il
Suga Digital Technology Limited  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary shares 100% 100% Design and trading of electronic
\ liability company K2 products in Hong Kong
BEEBRRERAA &8 BRAT] LRRET REBRAREER T
Em
Precise Computer Tooling Hong Kong, limited Ordinary shares 100% 100% Trading of moulds and plastic
Co., Limited liability company HK$500,000 products in Hong Kong
BRIBRIEERAA &8 BRAT AR REBEERARER
500,000/ T Em
Nodic-Matsumoto Tooling Mainland China, limited 1S$6,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of moulds and
and Plastic Injection liability company plastic products in
(Huizhou) Co., Limited Mainland China
[“Nodic" ) (v), (viii)
BA-DAERTE(BN) S8 FRAA 6,000000% 7T RPELERARER
BRAT (TR L)W - (viii) Em
Happypaws International Hong Kong, limited Ordinary shares 10% 100% Pet food distribution in Asia
Limited (formerly known liability company HK$1 countries
as "Suga LED Limited" &k BRAA LRRIET RENERDHEDRM

RLEBBRERAR
(A7 A& Suga LED Limited |)

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
£ & B &E B A R 2 A
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9 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND
AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(c) Details of the principal subsidiaries of the

Company as at 31 March 2012 are as follows:

(Continued)
Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The non-voting deferred shares of Suga Electronics Limited
are held by Essential Mix Enterprises Limited and Broadway
Business Limited, which are owned by Dr. Ng Chi Ho and
Mr. Ma Fung On, directors and beneficial shareholders
of the Company. These non-voting deferred shares have
no voting rights, are not entitled to dividends, and are
not entitled to any distributions upon winding up unless
a sum of HK$10,000,000,000 per ordinary share has been
distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares.

Suga Electronics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. is a wholly foreign
owned enterprise established in Mainland China with an
approved period of operation of 20 years until June 2014.

SNESL is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in
Mainland China with an approved period of operation of 20
years until October 2022.

PSSL is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in
Mainland China with an approved period of operation of 20
years until April 2024.

Nodic is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in
Mainland China with an approved period of operation of 30
year until September 2020.

The shares of Suga International Limited are held directly
by the Company. The shares of the other subsidiaries are
held indirectly.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at
any time during the year ended 31 March 2012.

All subsidiaries established in Mainland China have a
financial accounting year end date on 31 December in
accordance with the local statutory requirements, which is
not coterminous with the Group. The consolidated financial
statements of the Group were prepared based on the
management accounts of these subsidiaries for the twelve
months ended 31 March 2012.

B RS R AR M 7T

REBAR2REREWKE LT

R (&)

(c) ARRAR-ZF-—Z-F=A=+—
AZEEMBARFROT : (&)

G

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

vi)

(vii)

(viii)

EEETERAGZERERE
fE f% 19 M Essential Mix Enterprises
Limited }2Broadway Business Limited
BE MzEARAMAARRAES
REZBRRRAZBETRFELRE
SR DEEREREEROE
BERESWIMRE  FRE - RE
TERFEACES REREBR
10,000,000,0007%5 7T 1% » % FEIRE
BEEROFHEARAIEDIK

EEEFRIDERAFAREFEH
AERMZZINERE  BRfEZ
BEBREE_ZT—MNFNA L
2 EA20%F o

EEREEMATEPRRERY Z
2B BREZEEYRE
E-F-__F+ At AHI20F -

AE RN BER B KBRS 22N
Bi¥ EREZeE¥:HREZEC
T HEMA LE - AHI20F o

MAOREREARERLZZ2HNED
X BEREZERBREE_T—
TENH L - RE0F -

Suga International Limited < B% {7 (7K
REEEFE - HMMHBARZK
MAlRAD R EERES -

REEZ-_TE——F=F=+—HIt
FELMERE  SHEHNBAREGME
RIEEITIEEER -

RIBEMEAR  FAARTBARERK
VMBRBRZHMBEFFEFE
RART-_A=+t—H HAKH
ZEZKRLR - ARBKEEMBER
RNDBEZEMBRARBE_T——
FZA=t—BLET-_MEAZER
REmR -
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10 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 10 REEE AR 2=
(a) Interests in associates (a) RELE AT 2R
Group
A%H
2012 2011
—F-=-F Z—F——F
HKS' 000 HK$" 000
TER TET
Share of net assets FEIEEEFE 1,733 -
Group’s indirect interests in associates, each of which is REFENKZIE LM S AT 2BERERD
unlisted, are as follows: T

Particulars of
issued shares Country of % Interest
held incorporation  held Assets Liabilities Revenue Loss

FRERORAWE ERAIER  KEREES ‘ af A BR

m moow w2 omioAaw o
Z§-oF C3-F S§-2F CFF $0f CTF SR-f 3f
BRSO SO0 HKSWO BSOSO KOO HRSWD  HASOD
tén  TET TEn  TEr TRn  TEr  fEr  TER

Modern Tech Ordinary shares Hong Kong, lmited ~~ 28.57% 105 105 n Tl - - - -
Limited HKS10,500,000 liaility company
TARRERAR EBER0N0000ET FE BRAA
CKICOM Ordinary shares Hong Kong, imited 18% 3,095 - 1833 - 1,254 - (1,889) -
Technology HKS liability company
Limited (Note]
(W&t aERIET &% ARAT
Note: B ot
(a) On 25 October 2011, the Group acquired 18% equity shares of (a) RZTE—F+A=Z+HB  ~NEEKE
CKICOM Technology Limited (“CKICOM") with cash consideration CKICOM Technology Limited ([cKIcoM 1) &y
of HK$1,733,000. Although the Group has less than 20% equity 18% &z A1 + 75 B3R & 1X{8 /31,733,000
interests in CKICOM, the Group has significant influence over P TT ﬁ%\?%%CKICOMqﬂ BELR
CKICOM and is able to participate in the financial and operating 0%’ ARER - BEAKELCICOMEE
policy decisions of CKICOM. RN 2T LA K AE2 BECKICOMA) B 75 &
BEBHRRTE -
(b)  No accumulated losses are recognised by the Group for Modern (b) Hﬂﬁé‘$\%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁl\ﬁ&?¥<%ﬂ§f;%;&@
Tech Limited as the Group does not have further obligation to RARAUIN B8 - Eﬂ}$%@§lﬂﬁ5‘ﬁ%ﬁ
bear the losses of the associate beyond its cost of investment. MBI ERAAERETEE -

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(b) Amount due from an associate
Amount due from an associate is unsecured and non-
interest bearing. A special percentage of profit from the
associate’'s profits will be used for repayment of the
outstanding Loans from shareholders.

INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITY AND AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITY (“JCE")

Share of net assets (Note (a))

B R R AR 7

10 REBERT 2 B%& (@)
(b) FEUEEE T FIR
U ENRFRARBERRRLE -
BtE N RIE B O L eE N & R E

N R—BAEZFHER2EERER
—BAREHERE (HKEEHE
®1)RE

Group
rEHE

2011
—T——F
HK$' 000
FHETT

HK$’ 000
TR

FE 16 B EFE (MY FEla) - -

Amount due from a jointly controlled

entity (Note (b)) (Fff 3E(b))

FEU — KR 2 5 &

g 2
BB

30,083 26,112

Notes:

(a) No accumulated losses are recognised by the Group for the JCE
as the Group does not have further obligation to bear the losses
of the JCE beyond its cost of investment.

(b)  The amount due from the JCE comprised trade receivables from
the JCE. The carrying value of the amount due from the JCE
approximates its fair value.

The credit quality of balances that are neither past due
nor impaired in the amount of HK$30,083,000 (2011:
HK$26,112,000) could be assessed by reference to their
historical payment record. Management believes that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are expected to be fully recoverable.

The balances are denominated in U.S. dollars.

(a) ARAEEHEETAELARER TR
RERAAIN BB - HREEL B A
FEHEEERRAEE -

(a) FEMHARZEHEBHABREERARE
HIERE SRR - ARG EBRIA

ZEHAERAQAFERS -

& B HA s R 1B £ £230,083,0005 T (=%

——% :26,112,00087T) 2 EEE &AL
ZHPRAEBRGEETTGH - TEEM
5 AREEERTREANEHRZTHE

SRIEME 2B E - WHARZ ST EHRIE
R E R -
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11 INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED N R—BHEZFER BERER
ENTITY AND AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINTLY —EH |_H¢E FERB((XREZEHE
CONTROLLED ENTITY (“JCE") (Continued) B )&\ &)

The Group has 50% indirect interest in a jointly controlled RE B R R ) B 4% mh % B 50% M 3% i
entity, which is unlisted. The principal activity of the JCE is = ﬁ?%#tm HEEHIEBOEESE
trading of Electronic Products. BREEETEMm-

The following amounts represent the assets, liabilities, revenue NWTeosEARREHERNEE  BF -
and loss of the JCE. WA KB -

Particulars of Group’s share of
issued shares Country of % Interest AREER
held incorporation  held Assets Liabilities Revenue Loss

RRCRORMRE EMAUEX  HEEE% K af A [

0 01 2012 0 0 01 012 0
“$-Tf F—F J§-0f S C$-TF F—F 3§ %
HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSOO
TR Tir TAn Tir  TAr Tir TR Tin

Suga-Al Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong, limited 50% 42,089 512 42,089 5017 295492 296348 - =
HKS2 liability company
ERRER Bh o BRAA

\

There are no contingent liabilities and capital commitments VN A7 B 4 T 52 7 s I 4 sk AR
relating to the Group's interest in the jointly controlled entity, ﬁ%&ﬁz}xﬁkﬁ* S HEEH B A S I
and no contingent liabilities and capital commitments exist in mo RBENEANEAKE -

the jointly controlled entity.

Subsequent to the year end, the Group acquired the remaining RNELEF % NEB U R4 E e
50% equity interest in the jointly controlled entity (Note 41(a)). Zﬁ?TSO% A% AR #E 25 (M 3E41(a))
12 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET 12 AHHEERESE
Group
AEH
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
HKS$’ 000 HK$' 000
FHER FAET
At 1 April REA—HB 4,150 -
Additions NE - 3,875
Fair value (loss)/gain NFE(BR) s (275) 275
Impairment loss (Note 28) BB E5 18 (P 7E28) (1,196) —
At 31 March R=RA=+—H 2,679 4,150
The available-for-sale financial asset represented 5,000 non- At HEMEEERELMBRAESS
voting, redeemable, and participating shares in an unlisted 5 000f% E R RIER EEO KRR S5 - B
equity fund. It is denominated in US dollars and the fair value BEENETIE EATENREES
is determined by reference to the net asset value of the fund as %ﬁ}\ﬁﬁﬁ‘éiz%ﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi .

determined by the fund administrator.

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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13 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 13 BAVEEABE S HEEE
PROFIT OR LOSS

Group
rEH
2012 2011
—E-=-F ZT——F
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FET FAT
Non-current FRE
Foreign currency exchange note HINE 22 4 - 7,807
Investment in listed bonds REMEHFZKRE 6,993 3,674
6,993 11,481
Current mE
Foreign currency exchange note HMNEE R 1% 7,762 -
14,755 11,481

—EF-=-F ZT——F

HK$' 000 HK$ 000
FET FAT

At 1 April REA—AB 11,481 -
Additions NE 3,686 11,424
Exchange difference bE X = E 306 —
Changes in fair value ~NTEEH (718) 57
At 31 March R=A=+—H 14,755 11,481
As at 31 March 2012, financial assets at fair value through RZE——F=A=+—8  RAFEZ
profit or loss represented listed corporate bonds and a currency- ANERZUBREERE EMARES UKk
linked note. E R A Z 4 o
Listed corporate bonds with amount of approximately & %8 #75,802,0007% 7T }1,191,0007% T & £
HK$5,802,000 and HK$1,191,000 will mature between 1 and 2 TRTESD B E2E R2E5F A E|
years and 2 and 5 years respectively. The coupon rates of the He fTMARBEBNREEXREFNE
listed corporate bonds are from 6% to 7.04% per annum (2011: 7.04% (ZZF—— 4 : 6.88%=7.04%) ° f&
6.88% to 7.04%). These bonds are denominated in Renminbi. HLAARETIE -
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13 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

The currency-linked note is denominated in US dollars and the
principal amount is US$1,000,000. Such currency-linked note
will mature in March 2013. The note does not bear any interest
and the return will be determined based on various exchange
rates as of the maturity date. The Group is entitled to a 100% of
the principal amount upon maturity.

At 31 March 2012, the fair values of the listed corporate
bonds and the currency-linked note were determined based on
the quoted market price and valuation report provided by the
counterparty bank, respectively.

14 BONDS INVESTMENTS

13 AT EXRAERZHBEE (&)

EXBHBDEBEAEZITINERAEE
1,000,000 7T - BEAEXRBIZEHR =
T—=F= A58 - BT E  BHE
BTIPERZAERMmME - AEEHE
51 ER BF Y R R & 58 2. 100% ©

NR-ZE——FE=A=+—HB " LH2RE
ARERBOZER 2 AFEDRIRETS
WMEREFHRITAIRE 2 AEREME

e
IE °

14 BERE

Group

rEE
2012 2011
—E--fF —T——%F
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
THER FHET
At 1 April REA—H 14,011 -
Additions NE - 14,011
Exchange difference MEH ZR 263 -
At 31 March R=RAR=+—H 14,274 14,011

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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14 BONDS INVESTMENTS (Continued) 14 EBFKREE)
The terms of maturity of the bonds investments are summarised BEEEEZEHIETBEDT -
as follow:

2012 2011
—E-C-F —E——%F
HK$' 000 HK$" 000
FHERT TAT
Less than 1 year PR—F 5,165 -
Between 1 and 2 years R = 1,398 4,956
Between 2 and 5 years F_EEFRHF - 1,344
Over 5 years HENRE 7,111 7,711
14,274 14,011
The coupon rates of the bonds investments are from 2.70% to EBEREZEEBRBFF270%2555% °

5.55% per annum.

The bonds investments are denominated in the following BEAHEERIATEESE :
currencies:
2012 2011
—E--F —ZT—F
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THET FHET
US dollars e 7,111 7,711
Renminbi AR 6,563 6,300
14,274 14,011
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the RBERE  FSAEERBRABSREY
carrying amount of bonds investments. NEA(E o
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15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 15 REHNE S 2EMITA

Group
31
Assets at fair
Loans and value through Available-

receivables  profit or loss for-sale
ERR RAVERA
EhRE BHEE AR EE

HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FEL FAET FET
Assets BE
At 31 March 2012 R-E-_$=A=+—H
Available-for-sale financial asset (Note 12) 4k it & B % & & (M EH12) - - 2,679 2,679
Financial assets at fair value through BOTFELZARRL
profit or loss (Note 13) BBEE (H13) - 14,755 - 14,755
Bonds investments (Note 14) EHRE (Fi14) 14,274 - - 14,274
Trade and other receivables, excluding B E ZHEF R E YA -
prepayments (Note 17) T RERRFE (FE7) 171,792 - - 171,792
Amount due from an associate (Note 10)  FEURES & 13 A1 378 (B &E10) 267 - - 267
Amount due from a jointly controlled R —ELREHES
entity (Note 11) R () 30,083 - - 30,083
Derivative financial instruments fTES BT A (Faxe)
{Note 18) - 853 - 853
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 19) HeRBEZEED (F:19) 143,959 - - 143,959
360,375 15,608 2,679 378,662

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 15 BEREs2EMI A (&)
(Continued)
Group
58
Assets at fair
Loans and value through Available-
receivables  profit or loss for-sale Total
Rk BOFERA
EUHE BHzEE e L
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TET FER FAET FET
Assets BE
At 31 March 2011 N e =
Available-for-sale financial asset (Note 12) 7] 4t i & 81 % B & (P 512) - - 4,150 4,150
Financial assets at fair value through BRATERZABRL
profit or loss (Note 13) MBEE (FiE13) - 11,481 - 11,481
Bonds investments (Note 14) EHRE (F14) 14,011 - = 14,011
Trade and other receivables, excluding ~ FEINE 5B R E b B IKFE -
prepayments (Note 17) AR R A (Fa17) 143,611 - - 143,611
Amount due from a jointly controlled R —MERZEHEE
entity (Note 11) R (fzE11) 26,112 - - 26,112
Derivative financial instruments T2 m T A (F:18)
(Note 18) - 498 - 498
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 19) RBeRkBeZEY (Ma19) 161,149 - - 161,149

344,883 11,979 4,150 361,012
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15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 15 BRERE sz T A (&)
(Continued)
Other
financial
liabilities
HthH B EE
HK$' 000
FET
Liabilities =R
At 31 March 2012 R-_E-——_F=A=+—H
Trade and other payables (Note 20) FE <1 8 5 BR 5% I EL At P& A 5/ IE (B4 5E20) 179,872
Bank borrowings (Note 21) RITEE (FE21) 31,839
211,111
At 31 March 2011 RZE——F=A=+—H
Trade and other payables (Note 20) JE <1 8 55 BR 5% I EL Ath & A~ 5/ 3B (B4 5E20) 169,623
Bank borrowings (Note 21) RITEE (H5E21) 46,254
215,877
(T EY Loans and
AT receivables
EBX
FE U 3R 18
HK$' 000
FET
Assets BE
At 31 March 2012 RZE-——_F=A=+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 9) JE W Bt 188 & &) 3B (B 7E9) 137,832
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 19) RekReEEY (HE19) 13
138,245
At 31 March 2011 RZZE——F=A=+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 9) JE U BT B8 2~ B ZIE (BT EE9) 140,046
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 19) ReEMReEFEY (HEE19) 268
140,314

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 15 REFE P2/ I A (&)
(Continued)
Company Other
b /N financial
liabilities
H fth B %
=R
HK$' 000
FHET
Liabilities afE
At 31 March 2012 R_ZB——_Ff=A=+—H
Trade and other payables (Note 20) e B 5 BR 3% K EL 8 < 5 (M9 5E20) 2,242
At 31 March 2011 RZB——F=A=+—H
Trade and other payables (Note 20) JE <1 8 55 B % I EL Ath & < SR 3B (B9 5E20) 1,986
16 INVENTORIES 16 &
Group
rEE
2012 2011
=B-—=-F _ZT——F
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
TR FAET
Raw materials JR# 122,243 121,588
Work-in-progress 5 fn 26,435 29,745
Finished goods PX & 19,485 11,662
168,163 162,995
Less: Provision for impairment B R ERE (7,933) (7,933)
160,230 155,062
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included BRBRAI R AEEREAZTFERER
in cost of sales amounted to HK$949,617,000 (2011: 949,617,000/ 7T, ( =& ——4 : 921,301,000
HK$921,301,000). ABIT) °
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16 INVENTORIES (continued)
The Group realised a loss of approximately HK$1,641,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2011 in respect of write down of

16 BE (&)
REE-_ZT——F=A=+—HILtFE -
AEBHRMBRFEESEERFEER 2

inventories to their net realisable value. The amounts have been E518 49 41,641,000/ 7T © EZ SENEEE
included in cost of sales in the consolidated income statement. WEHRZIEEKAYEE
17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 EWEZRA R HEMEWRIE

Group Company
rEH ARQT
2012 2011 2012 2011
2—_F _T——F 8- _T——F
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FTERT FHET FERT FHE T
Trade receivables JEWE SR K 135,645 128,651 - =
Less: Provision for impairment & © JRU{E B & (3,931) (3,626) - —
Trade receivables, net FEUE B ERFF R 131,714 125,025 - —
Prepayments TR B 875 792 249 250
Rental and other deposits HekEMES 1,560 1,257 - =
Value added tax receivables JE B B 8,960 9,626 - —
Others Hh 13,308 7,703 - -
Trade and other receivables- %H&%%ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁm
current portion e R IE — & AT EB 10 156,417 144,403 249 250
Long-term loan receivable RHEE R EWGRIA 16,250 - - -
Total trade and other receivable  JEUW E 5 BE 7 & 172,667 144,403 249 250

HoAth & USRI AR RR

AEEEWE 5 RN E A YRR 2 R
mEEEAFERE

The carrying values of the Group’s trade and other receivables
approximate their fair values.

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The ageing of trade receivables is as follows:

17 BREZRARHEMEWRKRE @)
RUWE BN IRERINT

Group

TEE
2012 2011
—EF--F ZT——F
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
TART FAT
0 to 30 days TE=+H 114,280 103,372
31 to 60 days =+—%,~1H 10,773 13,807
61 to 90 days AT—ENTH 2,654 5,386
91 to 180 days N+—Z—8/\+H 1,494 1,636
Over 180 days =PAG =1 6,444 4,450
135,645 128,651
Less: Provision for impairment B ORERE (3,931) (3,626)
Trade receivables, net ERE SR FE 131,714 125,025

The Group generally granted credit terms of 30 days to its
customers.

AEE—RETHEPINAZEER -

The credit quality of the trade receivables that are neither
past due nor impaired in the amount of HK$114,280,000
(2011: HK$103,372,000) could be assessed by reference to
their payment history and current financial position. These
receivables relate to a whole range of customers for whom
there was no recent history of default. Management believes
that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balance are expected to be fully recoverable.

As of 31 March 2012, trade receivables of HK$17,434,000 (2011:
HK$21,653,000) were past due but not considered impaired.
These relate to a number of independent customers who have
no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these
receivables is as follows:

A B B9 2k R0 B e Uk & 5 BR 5X114,280,0007%
T (ZZE——% : 1033720008 T) 22 &
BXA2EHBAER IR L E
7TRHA - % SR GRIE 8 % 2 3 BN 4
REBZEFEH - EEEMRE  BE
EHRVTEEREYNZSHEHTENT
%%ﬂwﬁz@ BB S SR IEL R E R

R-ZEBE——F=A=+—H8 - 17,434,000
BLIZEVESER(ZE——F:
21,653,000/ ) E @ BB R AW ERE o
ZERKE SRR EZ AW EIERT
BeBUEFPBR - LERWER KRR
DA -

2012 2011
= i

HK$’ 000 HK$" 000

TAERT FAT

31 to 60 days =+—%"1H 10,773 13,807
61 to 90 days ANT—ENATH 2,654 5,386
91 to 180 days A+—Z—8/\+H 1,494 1,636
Over 180 days —AATHKRE 2,513 824
17,434 21,653
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As of 31 March 2012, trade receivables of HK$3,931,000
(2011: HK$3,626,000) were considered impaired. The individual
impaired receivables are mainly related to customers which no
longer have business relationship with the Group. The amount
of provision was HK$3,931,000 as of 31 March 2012 (2011:
HK$3,626,000). The impairment was firstly assessed individually
for significant or long ageing balances, and the remaining
balances were grouped for collective assessment according to
their ageing and historical default rates as these customers
were of similar credit risk. The ageing analysis of these
impaired receivables is as follows:

Over 180 days —BA+HBRE

17 EWESRAREMERFIEZ)
R-_FE——F=A=+—H - 3,931,000%
T (T ——4 : 3,626,000/ ) 2 EWE
SEFRBEDRMAE o BRI 2R EEK K
BIZHEBREEAEBEEBHER LT
FHE - —E——F=ZA=1+—H2EE
£33,931,000/8 7T (ZF ——4F : 3,626,000
TL) c EABBEALBR I BEE LE
BAUE ARNEERPZEERKE
P WHRBRERR BT HERL XSS
TEE BT - WEDRAERKENZ R
DT -

2012 2011
—E-——F

T ——4F
HK$" 000
FHE T

HKS' 000
FB

3,931 3,626

Movements of the provision for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

FREZEFRERBESNT

2012 2011

—E2--F —T——%F

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

FET FET

At 1 April R A—AR 3,626 6,964

Provision for/(reversal of) impairment WERE (BD) 264 (615)
Receivables written off during the year F R AR B U B 3 I8 B 8

as uncollectible el 3 & - (2,805)

Exchange differences bE H ZE ! 82

At 31 March R=A=+—H 3,931 3,626

As at 31 March 2012, the trade receivables from five customers
accounted for approximately 55% (2011: 54%) of the total trade
receivables. The Group's credit risk management is disclosed in
Note 3 to the financial statements.

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of trade receivables are denominated in
the following currencies:

B R R AR 7

17 BREZRARHEMEWRKRE @)

BB SRR EMEZATEEES

Group

rEH
2012 2011
—E--F —ZT—F
HKS$’ 000 HK$" 000
FET FAT
Hong Kong dollars BT 2,287 1,560
US dollars ETT 124,204 119,765
Renminbi AR 5,223 3,700
131,714 125,025

All trade receivables are either repayable within one year or
on demand. During the year, the Group recognised a loss of
HK$264,000 (2011: a gain of HK$615,000) for provision for
impairment of its trade receivables. Such loss has been included
in the general and administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement.

FTERKE SEREN —FRNBRER
BE -FR AEERERESETRE
B ETER2640008 TER(ZE——F ¢
W #£615,0008 ) - EEEBE AKRE
WaERN—BERITHEREBRAET -
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group is not aware of any credit risk on deposits,
value added tax receivables and other receivables as their
counterparties are either banks or government or corporation
or individual with good credit ratings. The majority of these
financial assets are neither past due nor impaired and there is
no history of default. The carrying amount of deposits, value
added tax receivables and other receivables are denominated in
the following currencies:

17 BRE SRR HE M EWKE &)

AEBY A HEERS - BUEER K
KA EMEERR  RARRS
B RBITIBAHERRFEEFR
ZRAHMEA - ZEMBEEANF D HR
F|MPORE - B EA RO - K~ &
WOB (B & B At R MR IR < BREE IR A T

P 4
Bkt E

Group

rEH
2012 2011
—E-C-fF —T——F
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TERT FET
Hong Kong dollars BT 6,968 6,996
Renminbi AR 21,280 11,590
US dollars X7 5,813 =
Others Hib 17 -
40,078 18,586

The long-term loan receivable represents a loan to a third
party of RMB13,000,000 (equivalent to HK$16,250,000). Such
loan bears interest at 6% per annum and is repayable on 15
November 2014. The loan is secured by the pledge of a property
located in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and a 98.81%
equity interest in a PRC incorporated Company, which is
engaged in educational consultancy services.

In addition to this long-term loan receivable, the Group has also
entered into an option agreement with the borrower which gives
the Group the right to acquire 25% equity interests in a PRC
incorpoated Company at an exercise price of RMB10,000,000.
The exercise period is from 25 November 2011 to 31 December
2014. Such PRC incorporated company is 100% beneficially
owned by the borrower and is engaged in trading of self-
developed social network systems and provision of related
Services.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at each reporting date is
the fair value of each class of receivables as mentioned above.
The Group does not hold any collateral as security, except for
the long-term loan receivable of approximately HK$16,250,000.

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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) cBEERIRTFEMNF KA EF
B UR-_ZE—WF+—A+HBEHE
B o BRAE MNP EARLME ([
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A AT#E A R #510,000,0007T HY 1T (B UL BE
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18 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward foreign exchange RHINE S LY

contracts

B R R AR 7

18 fTEE€®MT A

Group
r&EHE

2012
—_E—_F

2011
—E——F
Assets Liabilities
BE =0
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
R FAT

Liabilities
&\

HKS’ 000
TET

Assets
BE
HK$' 000
THERT

853 - 498 =

The notional principal amounts of the forward foreign exchange
contracts at 31 March 2012 were US$5,500,000 (2011:
US$2,000,000).

All of the Group’s forward foreign exchange contracts will
expire in November 2012, April 2013 and May 2013. The
maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 March 2012 was the
fair value of the derivative assets in the consolidated balance
sheet.

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

REINESHN —_E——F=A=+—8
2 ZEANEE A550000E T (ZFE——
£ : 2,000,000 7T) °

AEBEMBRBINESHBN T —=F
+—A ZZE—=fMAR=ZE—=FA
AEm R-_ZE——F=ZA=+—HzZ&
BEERRANGEEERBRZITEE
ERAFE-

19 BERBEEEEY

Group Company
rEH NN

2012 2011 2012 2011
=B 2% Z%F-=fF _T——F
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
THET FAT THET FAT
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFERSE 137,684 145,649 M3 268
Short-term bank deposits RERITIE R 6,275 15,500 - —
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEFEED 143,959 161,149 M3 268
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 19 ReRBREEEW#E)
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following RBekBeSEMRATEREE
currencies:

Group Company
rEE ¥ NN
2012 2011 2012 2011

—E--F —_FT——F 8- _FT——F
HKS$’ 000 HK$" 000 HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FET FAT FERT FAIT

Hong Kong dollars BT 16,288 10,063 21 229
US dollars ETT 96,532 111,239 370 23
Renminbi AR 30,834 39,680 - -
Other currencies Hfth & ¥ 305 167 16 16
143,959 161,149 413 268
As at 31 March 2012, the effective interest rate on bank RZE-—ZF=A=+—H RITEK
deposits was 1.4% (2011: 0.4%) per annum. The bank deposits CEBRMNEETFILN (ZE——F:
of the Group have an average maturity of 30 days (2011: 31 04%) - AEBZIRTTHER 2 FHENEAE
days). RIK(ZE——F : 31K) °
The conversion of bank balances and cash of the Group AEBENUARBHEZRITEHERRA SR
denominated in Renminbi into foreign currencies is subject BRINE 2 B - AP BBATEMS 25
to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control 0 & I 45 0] 2 38 7€ AT PR 1) o

promulgated by the Mainland Chinese Government.

20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20 ENEZRAREMENKE
The ageing analysis of the trade payables is as follows: BNESERZEESTAT :

Group Company
rTEE AN
2012 2011 2012 2011

—E--F T F ZB-=F _F—F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$ 000
T TAT TER THT

Trade payables B8 RN 159,115 153,477 - -
Salaries and staff welfare payable FEf ¥4 & 8 T& 7 11,221 6,722 - -
Accrued expenses e & F 3,996 4,276 2,242 1,986
Others H Al 5,540 5,148 - -

179,872 169,623 2,242 1,986

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

The ageing of the trade payables is as follows:

20. BN E 5 RN HA RN ()
BNE SRR IREMT :

Group
r&EE
2012 2011
2§ —T——F
HKS$' 000 HK$' 000
FERT TAET
0 to 30 days TEx=1H 144,174 132,455
31 to 60 days =+t—ZXTH 1123 10,215
61 to 90 days ANT—ENTH 1,159 4,187
91 to 180 days N+—Z—8/\+H 2,619 1,799
Over 180 days —BATBERLE 3,440 4,821
159,115 153,477
The fair values of the Group’s trade and other payables REFENESETREMENZIEZ A
approximate their carrying values. TEEAEmMERES °
The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated in the EMNESEREMEKRUTEEES

following currencies:

Group

rER
2012 2011
—8—=-F C—E——F
HK$ 000 HK$" 000
FHERT FET
Hong Kong dollars 19,417 19,482
US dollars 121,192 116,987
Renminbi 18,501 17,008
Other currencies 5 -
159,115 153,477
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20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 20 ENESRRREMENSRE S
The carrying amounts of other payables are denominated in the HinEN B REBERNTEREE -

following currencies:

Group Company
rEE ¥ NN
2012 2011 2012 2011

—E--F —_FT——F 8- _FT——F
HKS$’ 000 HK$" 000 HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FET FAT FERT FAIT

Hong Kong dollars 7T 6,293 5,332 2,242 1,986
Renminbi AR 14,342 8,980 - -
US dollars ET 122 1,834 - =
20,757 16,146 2,242 1,986
21 BANK BORROWINGS 21 RITEE
Group
rEE
2012 AN
—B--f —T——F
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FTER FAT
Non-current FERE
Long-term bank borrowings RERITEER 31,839 42,862
Less: current portion of long-term B REBRITEERS TS
bank borrowings (9,376) (9,363)
22,463 33,499
Current TE
Trust receipt bank loans ERBIEERITER - B 1
Current portion of long-term bank RHARTEERD LD
borrowings 9,376 9,363
9,376 12,755
Total borrowings BEHARE 31,839 46,254

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 21 RITEE (&)
The terms of borrowings are as follows: BER T MR

Group
AEE
Trust receipt Other bank
bank loans borrowings Total

EERBRITER HRTEE &t
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
- T ZB--%f _T——F Z8--§ _T——F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
THER FAT TR AT THExT AL

Within one year —FRQ - 3,392 9,376 9,363 9,376 12,755
In the second year F_F - - 4,412 12,731 4,412 12,731
Between 2and5years F_FEFHF - - 8,453 8,392 8,453 8,392
Over b years HERE - - 9,598 12,376 9,598 12,376

3,392 31,839 42,862 31,839 46,254

At 31 March 2012, the Group has aggregate banking facilities MN-_ZE——F=F=+—8 AEERE

of approximately HK$349,839,000 (2011: HK$389,112,000) for Y BN NEBESRMEERITEEAEY

overdrafts, loans and trade financing. 349,839,0007 7T (==& ——4F : 389,112,000

ABIT) °

Unused facilities at the same date amounted to approximately B B 2 & &) F &l & 49299,285,000% T (—

HK$299,285,000 (2011: HK$321,661,000). These facilities are T ——4F :321,661,00087T) ° & A T3

secured by: BEEER:

(a) certain land and buildings (Note 6) of the Group with the (a) ZNE&EEBEEEA46,914,0008 T (=
carrying amount of HK$46,914,000 (2011: HK$48,260,000). ——4F : 48260000/ T) 2 & F b

BT (HEE6)

(b) certain inventories held under trust receipt bank loans b) EEERBRTERTHBETIHAEZS
arrangements. FEE .

(c) corporate guarantees provided by the Company and certain ) ARBIREETHEARRE AR
of its subsidiaries. EIR -

In addition to the above, the Group has agreed to comply with b FaltEAIN  REBEREESTE TIRITH

certain restrictive financial covenants imposed by certain banks. Nz & TR &| B 15325 o
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21 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 21
The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate changes
and the contractual repricing dates were as follows:

RITIEE (&)
AEBERBEAH  FEEHRAKRENE
FEBBHHHMT :

Group

rEH
2012 AN
T--f —T——%
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
THERT FET
6 months or less NE A AT 4,682 8,051
7 to 12 months +ZE+ A A 4,694 4,704
1to0 5 years —ZEZRF 12,865 21,123
Over 5 years AFEUE 9,598 12,376
31,839 46,254

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as
follows:

Trust receipt bank loans EREREITER
Other bank borrowings HmiRITEE

REZBZERMEMT

Group

rEE
2012 2011
—¥—=-—f C—E——F
HKS$’ 000 HK$' 000
FTHERT THET
1.1% 1.3%
1.3% 1.2%

As all the bank borrowings were at floating interest rates,
the carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their fair
values and all balances are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 22 EEREH
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when BIEFEHEENBEREBAFKENIT
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets NRBFGHEERERBAGHAGZ
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income B BIELEFREHER —HBEEEEHE
taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are BRTHEE -HEESBAOT -
as follows:
Group
rEH
2012 AN
—E-=-F ZT——F
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
FET FAT
Deferred income tax assets: BB REE :
— Deferred income tax asset to be — T+ ZEARKE 2
recovered after more than 12 months EEFTEMEE (3,665) (1,888)
Deferred income tax liabilities: EEFERARE :
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be - @+ —@AAKEEZ
settled after more than 12 months BLEFBHARE 2,807 2,275
The movement in the net deferred income tax (assets)/liabilities EBELEMEN (BE) AEFREE
account is as follows: AT
Group
rEH
2012 AN
=B-—=-F _ZT——F
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
FET FAT
At 1 April RrUA—H 387 278
(Credited)/charged to consolidated RirE =R GEA) /K
income statement (Note 31) (M$5E31) (1,245) 109
At 31 March R=A=+—H (858) 387
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22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 22 EEMRBH (&)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities EEFEHEERBERFRN2EE (K
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting SFERRE -G AEREE &)
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: ™

Accelerated tax depreciation

MEHBEINE
2012 2011
—E--fF —T——F
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FET FHE T
Deferred income tax liabilities REFMGHEAE
At 1 April R A—H 2,398 2,713
Charged/(credited) to consolidated RirA Rz (GEA)
income statement 434 (315)
At 31 March R=ZA=+—H 2,832 2,398

Decelerated tax
depreciation Tax loss Total

BEBENE HEER ED

2012 2012 201 2012 01
=g-cfF % %= 3% Z¥--fF _FF
HKS000  HKSOD0  HKSO00  HKSO000  HKSO00  HKSO00
TER TARL TER TAL TEn TRL

Deferred income tax assets BEEMGHEE

At 1 April REA—H (224) (247) (1,787) (2.188) (2,011) (2,435)
Charged/(credited) to consolidated  FMRA KE R

income statement 0/ GHA) 40 23 (1,119) 401 (1,679) 424

At 31 March R=RA=+-H (184) (224) (3,506) (1,787) (3,690) (2,011)
As at 31 March 2012, the Group has unrecognised tax losses of RZE——F=ZA=+—H ®EBEA
HK$363,000 (2011: HK$19,068,000) for Hong Kong profits tax BHMsS  AEBAAKHERNBER
purposes and unrecognised tax losses of HK$4,040,000 (2011: 363,000 7T (==& — — 4 : 19,068,000/5
HK$18,323,000) for the Mainland Chinese enterprise income tax o) MBI ARESEMREGRME @ AKX
which will expire during 2012 to 2016. No deferred tax assets TR IEE 18 54,040,008 5 (=& — —
have been recognised for these tax losses as the directors F :18,323,000/7L) R T ——F
consider that it is not probable that the temporary difference BT NEFIH -ARESAAETEE
will be reversed in the foreseeable future. AR RE TSR A] Rk E D - MU &R

ZERABRERETCHBAEE

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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23 SHARE CAPITAL 23 BA

Number of shares Nominal value

gt 4= R4 E B

'000 HK$" 000
TR TET

Authorised — ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each JATE — SR EE01E T2 EBRK 2,000,000 200,000

Issued and fully paid — ordinary shares of ~ E /T RBT —SFREENIE T

HK$0.1 each Z &R
At 1 April 2010 R-_ZE—ZEFMHA—A 242,520 24,252
Bonus issue of shares (Note (b)) BETAT AR (BT 3E(b) 24,577 2,457
Issue of shares upon exercise of REERERITERZITRG
share options (Note (a)) (K3 (a)) 4,647 465
At 31 March 2011 RZE——F=H :+—EI 271,744 27,174
Issue of shares upon exercise of RIEREEITERZITRG
share options (Note (a)) (P 5E(a)) 550 55
At 31 March 2012 R-ZE-——_Ff=HA=+—H 272,294 21,229
Notes: B ok
(a) During the year ended 31 March 2012, 550,000 ordinary shares of (a) BHEZZE—-—F£=A=+—HIEE B
HK$0.1 each were issued upon the exercise of share options (31 A RE A E 1 T B 35 17550,000i B AL E (B
March 2011: 4,647,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1) (Note 24). 0BTz ERR(ZE——F=A=+—
B : 4,647,000l B REEIE T &R
B%) (FsE24) o
(b) During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Company allotted and b) HE—ZFTE——F=A=+—HIFE"
issued 24,577,000 shares on 10 September 2010 by way of bonus RRRRZE—TFNA+H AR
issue (the “Bonus Issue”) on the basis of one new bonus share 17 77 =X B 3 K 35 1724,577, 000 B 1 (4T
for every ten existing shares held by the shareholders. The bonus ME1T])  REAREZSEA+TRIRAE
issue was funded by way of capitalisation of the Company's B AT BE — AR R ALY o 4TARZE1T IO AR
share premium of the same amount. AR —2B RO EEERE -
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24 SHARE OPTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 17 September 2002. Pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme, the Company may grant share options to certain
grantees (including directors and employees) of the Group to
subscribe for shares of the Company. The maximum number of
Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under this Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes adopted by the
Group shall not exceed 30 per cent of the share capital of the
Company in issue from time to time. The subscription price will
be determined by the directors, and will not be less than the
highest of the nominal value of the shares, the closing price of
the shares quoted on the Stock Exchange on the trading day of
granting the options and the average of the closing prices of the
shares quoted on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of granting the options.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding during
the year are as follows:

24 BEIRFE

ARBAR_ZET_FNATLERABKR
AT ([T E)) - RIRERER
g ARRIAIAAREETARA (BR
EENER) HRBEREARBE ALK
0 o RIBBBER & AR ERA I
Al R B IR MR RTT R 2 PR %
THINBRERTERJRERITZRRK
#A - MEBEARARTED BEITRA
30% REERHEFETE  2BITIR
BihmEE  StEBREZRSHEBRN
FERSE X TP ¥R T (B K R FE AR L 1% B
B AT T8 5 B R0 FE B 52 P B P45 1R
mEARGERE)

FARATEBRERE 22BN

2012 2011
—EB-—-F —E——%F

Average Average

exercise exercise
price in HK$  Number of price in HK$ Number of
per share options per share options

BRZFH Bk ¥H
BTIEE BREHE BxroEE BRE#HEA
000 000
Skl T
At 1 April KA A—AH 1.008 1,705 0.682 3,820
Granted during the year F A2 & H 1.750 432 1.252 2,250
Bonus issue of shares ~ ZE1TALAR - - 1.061 282
Exercised BT 0.682 (550) 0.862 (4,647)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 1,587 1,705

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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24 SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before the date of exercise of share options was
HK$1.65.

As at 31 March 2012, all the outstanding options were fully
vested and exercisable, except 1,045,000 options granted
on 3 June 2010 and 432,000 options granted on 21 October
2011, which have vesting periods of 3.58 years and 3 years
respectively and only exercisable on 31 December 2013 and 21
October 2014 respectively .

As at 31 March 2011, all the outstanding options were fully
vested and exercisable, except the 1,045,000 options granted on
3 June 2010.

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the
following expiry dates and exercise prices:

Exercise
price
Expiry date THEE

WA BT =%

B R R AR 7

24 BBRRRE (&)

ARRBRMDRERITERBBEE B 51250
BYHRTERIBLET

MN-_Z——F=/A=+—8 " FAaREXT
FrBRECEABRBLA/TE R
T—ZFNAZ AHEH 21,045,000 85 A%
BZRBHAINFE R-E—=F+=
R=+—BAaaE  MRZT——F+
A=+— AR 24320000 BRIEZ BB
HAE R-_ZE-—ME+A-+—BH
AI{T{E -

W-_ZE——F=F=+—8 " FiEaRKXT
FZBREEEREBBLA/TE R
T—ZTFNAZ AHE M 21,045,00017 8 A%
RERRIN

RELERARITHEEREZIHARETE
BT :

Number of options Vested percentages
EREHE BEEOL
2012 2011 2012 2011
—F —FT——F ZB-ZF _T——F

‘000 '000

Directors BEE
3 August 2014 —E-MFENA=H 0.682
Employees =]
28 April 2015 —E—RFEMA=-+N\H 1.331
2 June 2015 —T-RFA~HAZH 1.145

21 October 2016 —ZE—XR"F+A=-+—H 1.750

Others Hit
3 August 2014 —E—NENA=H 0.682

T TH
- 220 - 100%
110 110 100% 100%
1,045 1,045 47% 29%
432 = 14% =
- 330 - 100%
1,587 1,705
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24 SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

The weighted average fair value of the options granted during
the year ended 31 March 2012 determined using the binomial
option pricing model was approximately HK$0.5500 per share
(2011: HK$0.3946 per share and HK$0.3137 per share). The
significant inputs into the model were share price of HK$1.750
as at the grant dates (2011: HK$1.464 and HK$1.260), exercise
price as shown above, volatility of 59.64% (2011: 52.8% and
53.3%), expected life of options of five years (2011: five years),
expected dividend yield of 7.43% (2011: 6%) and annual risk-
free interest rate of 0.836% (2011: 2.07% and 1.59%). The
volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected
share price returns is based on the historical volatility of the
Company's share price over a period of 4 years (2011: 4 years)
before the date when the options were granted.

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
= & BB &8 AR 23

24 BBIRFE (&)

HE _T——F=ZA=+—HILFER
FIREEREZNMETHRAFE®
AZEARTERAEBEET NAEKR
0.5500% 7T (Z & ——F : §/%0.3946/8 7T
REGR037TETL) BEXZEE@HAE
ARBFE BB ZRMHERLT0E T (=
T——F 14648 TR1.2608TT) + £EX
P {7 (8 « AR 1D K 1859.64% (=T ——
F :52.8%%533%) - FEEEREFHA
F(ZEBE——F:1F)  BHREOR
KI3% (ZE——F :6%) RERER
B F%0.836% (= ——F : D 5I2.07% K%
159%) - RIFTFHRER K EEEZHE
HRNE - DIEARRRERELERER
HAAFE (ZE——F 4F) AZELIHIE
TE o
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25 RESERVES

25 f#1E

Group
ALE
Share-  Available-
based for-sale
Capital compen- financial
Share reserve sation asset  Exchange  Retained
premium  (Note(a)) reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total
AfmeE
EAGE DRHXN HBEE
RiVEE  (FaE) MWeHEeE fE ERiRE RERH CH
HKS$' 000 HKS$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HKS$' 000 HKS' 000
TEr TExr FEx TExr  ThEx  FEx  TEn
At 1 April 2010 RZE-ZF
mA-A 61,119 10,591 540 = 30,987 203,119 306,356
Exchange difference arisingon 2 E /9N B\ 7]
translation of foreign FEARLESE
subsidiaries = = = = 5,329 = 5,329
Fair value gain on available-for AT {t HE B KA E
-sale financial asset L D EERG - - - 275 - - 275
Bonus issue of shares BATHLRR (R =E23(b))
(Note 23 (b)) (2,457) - - - (2,457)
Employee share option scheme: (& 8 B AR 2512 -
Value of employee services ~ [EEMREZEE - - 598 - - - 598
Proceeds from shares issued ~ 1T{F B AR IERF 4T
upon exercise of options in 2 FriEEIE 3782 - - - - - 3782
Transfer of reserve upon TRERER
exercise of options BREE 943 - (943) - - - -
Profit for the year ERET - - - - - 90,438 90,438
Dividends paid Bk E - - - - - (29537)  (29,537)
At 31 March 2011 R-B--F
ZA=t-H 63,387 10,591 195 215 36,316 264,020 374,784
Representing: RER:
Proposed dividend BRR & 43514
Others it 220,506

264,020

Annual Report 2011/125 %



144

Notes to the Financial Statements
B &R MI 5T

25 RESERVES (Continued) 25 B (&)

Group
rEE
Share-  Available-
based for-sale
Capital  compen- financial
Share reserve sation asset Exchange  Retained

premium  (Note(a))  reserve  reserve  reserve  earnings Total
A E
BRfE ARNXN HEBEE
ROEE (Hita) MWeHE e EiRk REER &t
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Tex TEr TEx FEx TEx  TEx  TER

At 1 April 2011 RZE——F
MA—H 63,387 10,591 195 275 36,316 264,020 374,784

Exchange difference arisingon A E G B 7

translation of foreign FEERLESR

subsidiaries - - - - 4,995 - 4,995
Fair value loss on available-for A4t B EBBEE

-sale financial asset LATFEEBR - - - (275) - - (275)
Exchange reserve released upon A HEZ I B 7]

disposal of a foreign R B A

subsidiary - - - - (430) - (430)

Employee share option scheme: (& 2 B AR 2518 -

Value of employee services EERBEE - - 125 - - - 125
Proceeds from shares issued 1T BB AR IERF 4T

upon exercise of options iz &R 320 - - - - - 320
Transfer of reserve upon TR BRER

exercise of options BREE n - (1) - - - -

Profit for the year FERREM - - - - - 93,252 93,252

Dividends paid Bk E - - - - - (62,628)  (62,628)

At 31 March 2012 R=B-ZF

=H=1-H 63,778 10,591 249 - 40,881 294,644 410,143

Representing: HER

Proposed dividend RIKRE 21228
Others it 267415
294,644

Note: BfsE -

(a) The capital reserve of the Group comprises, among others, (a) AEEBEAAHEGBEE(HDaRE) R
the difference between the nominal value of the ordinary EE-FNARBEARERSEHEER
shares issued by the Company and the aggregate amount 1 RN N B P B 1T 5 IR T (E B AT
of the share capital and share premium of subsidiaries UG BE BT B A B 2 RR 2N 2 IR 19 S5 (B 4 %a
acquired through an exchange of shares pursuant to the 7 =% o

Group’s reorganisation in September 2002.
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25 @ (&)

Company
VNN
Share-
based
compen-
Share  Contributed sation Retained
premium surplus reserve earnings
AR 18
BHEE #ARR HeRE KRIERN
(note (a))
(Bt &x(a))
HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
AT FET THET FET TET
At 1 April 2010 RZE-ZF
mAE—H 61,119 64,872 540 18,547 145,078
Bonus issue of shares BITALR (2,457) (2,457)
Employee share option scheme: B B R #Est & :
Value of employee services EE k%2 BE - - 598 - 598
Proceeds from shares issued TR R 31T
upon exercise of options B2 B3 30E 3,782 - - - 3,782
Transfer of reserve upon TEERER
exercise of options BERHE 943 - (943) - -
Profit for the year FRmH - - - 59,885 59,885
Dividends paid BEIRRE = = = (29,537) (29,537)
At 31 March 2011 R=B-——-f%
ZA=t-H 63,387 64,872 195 48,895 177,349
Representing: HER :
Proposed dividend Bk 2 43514
Others 2t 5,381
48,895
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25 RESERVES (Continued)

25 @ E)

Company

PN
Share-
LE
compen-
Share Contributed sation Retained
premium surplus reserve earnings
MR 5 X
ROEE SHABRH MeRE KREEF
(note (a))
(it &E(a)
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TER TER TER TER
At 1 April 2011 RZE——F
M A~ A 63387 64872 195 48895 177,349
Employee share option scheme: (B B BB AR#E:T 2 :
Value of employee services EERBEE - - 125 - 125
Proceeds from shares issued IR R 21T
upon exercise of options B0 2 FTE 58 320 - - - 320
Transfer of reserve upon e A
exercise of options BRRE n - (M) - -
Profit for the year FRmH - - - 59,949 59,949
Dividends paid BRI E - - - (62,628) (62,628)
At 31 March 2012 R-B-ZF
=H=+—H 63,778 64,872 249 46,216 175,115
Representing: HER :
Proposed dividend BIRRE 21,229
Others Hity 18,987
46,216
Note: B s
(b) Contributed surplus represents the difference between the (b) BABBIEELAIBATEITRMD 2H
nominal amount of the shares issued and the book value BHREAEENBAREEFEERA
of the underlying net assets of subsidiaries acquired in BEz=%-

return.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed
surplus is distributable to shareholders, subject to the
condition that the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus
if (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realisable value of
its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium.

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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27

28

REVENUE

The Group is principally engaged in the research and
development, manufacture and sales of electronic products,
moulds and plastic products. Revenues recognised during the
year are as follows:
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26 Uz

RzWaEmT -

AEBTENEETER BEAREBE
mif T R - BUEEEE X - FAME

2012 2011
—E--F ZT——F
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FERT FTAT
Sales of goods BEMEER
— electronic products —BFEM 1,193,273 1,137,249
— moulds and plastic products - RARBRBER 48,724 53,809
1,241,997 1,191,058

OTHER INCOME, NET

21 HMA - FE

2012 2011

—F--F ZF——F

HKS$' 000 HK$' 000

FET FABT

Scrap sales BERLHE 1,381 491
Others HAh 205 225
1,586 716

OTHER GAINS, NET

Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets at

28 Hthless - FEE

2012
—Eg—C—fF

HKS$’ 000
TR

BAVECABR I MBEE

2011
—2——F
HK$’ 000
FET

fair value through profit or loss ZATE(BE) W (718) 57
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A EMBEERBERE
financial asset (Note 12) (H&E12) (1,196) -
Net foreign currency exchange gain BE 3 Wz 5 BB 3,350 -
Fair value gain on derivative MEsMI Az AFEKS
financial instruments 355 490
Net realised gain on derivative TEeMIAZERIKEFHE
financial instruments 2,243 1,060
4,034 1,607
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29 EXPENSES BY NATURE 29 mMHEE s Z2EX
Expenses included in cost of sales, distribution and selling
expenses and general and administrative expenses are analysed

AAAHERAN  DHEEEHEERAR R
RITRERBERZASAWMT :

as follows:
2012 AN
—F--F —F—F
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FET FET
Cost of inventories FERAR 949,617 921,301
Depreciation of property, plant M WERRENE
and equipment
— owned assets —-BEEE 13,753 11,792
Amortisation of land use rights 3 {5 P A 5K 137 135
Loss/(gain) on disposals of property, HENE  BERZHEZ
plant and equipment E1E, (W) 4 (322)
Operating lease rental of premises BFzEEAEe 5,407 5,869
Employee benefit expense (including ETIRMAX (BREESEHE)
directors’ emoluments) (Note 35) (Mg5E35) 127,350 104,142
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment EUE 5 R FRE
of trade receivables Bl (o) 264 (615)
Provision for obsolete and slow-moving B REETERE
inventories (included in cost of sales) (FIASHERA) - 1,641
Auditor’s remuneration % EEN BN 2,116 1,985
Other expenses HAi 2 49,007 45,637
Total cost of sales, distribution and HERAR DEKIEEER
selling expenses and general and UE—RETHEREER
administrative expenses B 1,147,655 1,091,565

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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30 FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS

31
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B R R AR 7

30 MEWARBE KA

2012 2011
—B--fF ZT——F
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FERT FET
Interest income from: KA TIERZFEWA -
— bank deposits —IRITIFER 2,17 1,181
— bonds investments —EBEHKE 1,053 400
Finance income BEWKA 3,224 1,581
Interest expense on: ATHEBZHME :
— bank borrowings wholly repayable - ARAEFARRBEEE
within five years ZRITEE (1,343) (1,031)
Finance income — net ME WA —F5E 1,881 550
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 31 FBBiIAX
(a) Bermuda and British Virgin Islands income tax (a) BRERREELZBEBEFSBH

(b)

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until
2016. The Company’'s subsidiaries in the British Virgin
Islands are incorporated under the International Business
Acts of the British Virgin Islands and, accordingly, are
exempted from the British Virgin Islands income taxes.

Hong Kong profits tax (b)
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of

16.5% (2011: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits

for the year.

ARBEE-T - FHRBARE
BE ARAIRNEBRLEE B
REIRBRBERELESBRERA
REMACAL - Hitk R BB R X B B A
/i -

BEEFESB
EENEGHRERBAFEEM[TER
Tt A A B E165% (ZF——F -
16.5% ) FE RS 44 o
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31 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 31 FBBEX#E)
(c) Mainland Chinese enterprise income tax (c) FELTEREH
Suga Electronics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“SESL"), Suga EESFRINBERARA(EES
Networks Equipment (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“SNESL"), F1) - EEAKSEMCRIDBRA
Pets & Supplies (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (“PSSL") and Nodic- Al ([fEEMBEM])  HBEEECR
Matsumoto Tooling and Plastic Injection (Huizhou) Co., Ltd. WERAR([HEEE]) - EH—
(“Nodic”) are subsidiaries established in Mainland China. MAEE T (BMN) AR A A (M5
All the Group's subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject HD) TR R KER Y 2B AR -
to corporate income tax at 25% effective from 1 January REBRPRKREZFEHRBARB
2008. —EENF-HA—BRERD%ZH

KEMEEREH -

(d) Macao taxation (d) BFBIE
P&S Macao Commercial Offshore Limited is a subsidiary HERMEEREREERAT AR
established in Macao and is exempted from Macao B 2B AR - RERPIFE
Complementary Tax. R -

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income BRARERNBZAAEHAT

statement represents:

2012 2011
—F--F =—F—F
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FET FHET

Current income tax: B HIFET -
— Hong Kong profits tax —BENEM 10,424 8,113
— Income tax outside Hong Kong —BBRINIET 3,274 3,952
— Over-provision in prior years —BAFEBERE (3,696) (246)
Deferred income tax (Note 22) EIEFTEH (M eE22) (1,245) 109

8,757 11,928

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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31 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 31 FEREX#E)
The income tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs REFGTEMANGETN ZREREEE
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation R RAE BB ANTR =15
rate in Hong Kong as follows: [N
2012 2011
—8—=-F C—E——F
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
THET FHET
Profit before income tax B B 15 5 A1l A 101,843 102,366
Calculated at a taxation rate of 1216.5% (ZZF ——%F : 16.5%)

16.5% (2011: 16.5%) R 16,804 16,890
Effect of different income tax rates BERRINTEERALKA

on income arising outside TRMERE &

Hong Kong 766 1,152
Tax loss not recognised RERTIEEE 508 142
Expenses not deductible for NAMAER A

income tax purpose 657 483
Income not subject to income tax HABRFTED 2 WA (2,538) (4,954)
Over-provision in prior years BEFTEBRERE (3,696) (246)
Recognition of previously BERBERERTEEE

unrecognised tax loss (2,057) -
Utilisation of previously PABEARERRIEEE

unrecognised tax losses (1,687) (1,539)
Income tax expense FIsfix 8,757 11,928
There is no tax charge relating to components of other MEpREY LHEEMEmIRATBE SR -

comprehensive income.

32 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS OF 32 AXATREEELEFR
THE COMPANY
The profit attributable to the owners of the Company is dealt RNRBIFEE G ETE A £59,949,0007%
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of JT(ZZ ——4F : 59,885,000 7T) E 5t A
a profit of approximately HK$59,949,000 (2011: HK$59,885,000). RABFBRE ©
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33 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year.

(a)

(b)

33 BRER

(a)

=23

SR ARFI Y EA R A A E B
ERIG MR BT AR AT
BBE -

Profit attributable to owners

of the Company (HK$' 000) (F&mT)

ARBIAEREEN

Weighted average number of

ordinary shares in issue ("000) (F8)
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BRERAERM L)
Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
assuming conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. The Company has one category of dilutive potential
ordinary shares which is the share options granted to
employees. For the share options, a calculation is done
to determine the number of shares that could have been
acquired at fair value (determined as the average market
price of the Company's shares) based on the monetary
value of the subscription rights attached to outstanding
share options. The number of shares calculated as above is
compared with the number of shares that would have been
issued assuming the exercise of the share options.

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
£ & B &E B A R 2 A

(b)

93,252 90,438
272,164 269,904
34.26 33.51
#E

BREERNINRRAEEEEE
EERCEBRER T HBETESN
LBRNEFHBREBEEMRAE - &
REAA—HEEHELAK  ARE
BRECEBRE -sLBERENS A
BT EIRFIEN R RITREREZ
RBE TBEEERAE  BEITAUR
DFE(ARR AR FETETE)
BAZBRMEE - RERTTEFEZ
B in 8B MR R BB EITEME
RETHRMNEE L -
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33 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(b) Diluted (Continued)

33 BREN &)
(b) #5F (&)

Profit attributable to owners RKRABFTEEEG R
of the Company (HK$' 000) (F%&7T) 93,252 90,438
Weighted average number of BT EBRINE TR E
ordinary shares in issue ("000) (%:Hx) 272,164 269,904
Adjustments for share options ('000)  BEMRIERAERE(TH) 642 1,536
Weighted average number of BREERMN 2 LR
ordinary shares for diluted anfE e (FRR)
earnings per share (" 000) 272,806 271,440
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) &R # & 2 F| (B1L) 34.18 33.32
34 DIVIDENDS 34 KRE
2012 2011
—E-C-F —E——%F
HK$' 000 HK$ 000
FER FET
Interim dividend, paid, of HK7.0 cents Bk 7 B B 8 AR @ AT .0 L
(2011: HK5.0 cents) per ordinary share —ZT——F :5.081l) 19,061 13,542
Final dividend, proposed, of R R AR B = A & @ AR 10.078 11
HK10.0 cents (2011: HK8.0 cents) —ZT——F : 8.081L)
per ordinary share 21,229 21,757
No special dividend proposed BERRERIRE (ZE——F
(2011: HK$8.0 per ordinary share) R EEARS.0E L) - 21,757
46,290 57,056
At a meeting held on 26 June 2012, the directors proposed the RZE-—Z—FRAZ+T BTz

payment of a final dividend of HK10.0 cents per share for the

e %%E%Eﬁ@i_ =z

——%=H

year ended 31 March 2012. Such dividends are to be approved
by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 6 August
2012. These proposed dividends are not reflected as a dividend
payable in the financial statements, but will be reflected as an
appropriation of distributable reserves in the year ending 31
March 2013.

=+—BLFERMTRBAKEEF/R0.0E
il - BEREER=_E—=—ENASEZ
BRAFAG KRR - BRKR B
ARG BHRERRABIRRS R
AHE-_T—=%F=A=+—HIEFEZ
—H#A/)Eﬁﬁ1% /)_JE ©
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35 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 3B EIRIAFA(BREEMS)
DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS)

2012 AN
—B--Ff —T——F
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FTER FAHT
Wages and salaries TERS® 114,657 92,449
Bonus rFAN 3,903 3,161
Staff welfare ETI&EF 5,041 5,322
Share-based compensation expenses DA R A9 2 1+ Bl & B 2 125 598
Unutilised annual leave REDMER 197 100
Pension costs — defined contribution plans B & A — F 5B A 2 3,427 2,512
127,350 104,142
(a) Directors’ emoluments and senior management (a) EEMERSREE A S FH M
emoluments
The emoluments of every director for the year ended 31 BHE-_T——F=-A=+t—HILFE
March 2012 is set out below: EREBEZCMEHINMT ¢

Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme  Share-hased Total
Fees benefits contributions compensation emoluments

HFER RAIKER ROHR
wE Hit i 7| sHEIHR M B % MEast
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TER TR TER TR TR

Dr. Ng Chi Ho REREL - 3175 318 - 3,493
Mr. Ma Fung On SEREE - 1,397 70 - 1,467
Professor Wong Sook BEaedK

Leung, Joshua 240 - - - 240
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven ~ 2F L& 180 - - - 180
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BARLE 180 - - - 180
Mr. Lee Kam Hung TRELE 180 - - - 180

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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35 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments and senior management
emoluments (Continued)
The emoluments of every director for the year ended 31
March 2011 is set out below:

Fees

e

HK$' 000

THT

Dr. Ng Chi Ho REREL -

Mr. Ma Fung On BETEE -
Professor Wong Sook Leung, =& =K

Joshua 240

Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven ~ RF L 4E 180

Mr. Chan Kit Wang BRALREE 180

Mr. Lee Kam Hung TRELE 180

3B ETRMNAX(BREEENE) (@)

(a) EEMERSREBABHMH

Salaries
and other
benefits

ek
i h
HK$" 000
TRT

3,000
1,320

(%)

BE-T——4$=A=1+-ALFE
BERERZMERIIMT -

Retirement
benefits
scheme

contributions

RIKRER

ATEIf

HK$" 000
TET

300
66

Share-based Total
compensation emoluments
Rfn i 5%

N5 S Meas

HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TRET TRT
- 3,300

- 1,386

202 442

597 i

- 180

- 180
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35 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING

DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included two (2011: two) directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emoluments payable to the remaining three
(2011: three) individuals during the year are as follows:

Basic salaries, allowances and

EAXFHw  2RER

3B BETIRANAX (BREEME) (@)

(b) EEEREHFMAL
RAFE  KAEBRERSFMAL
BEME(ZE—F WB)ES -
HEZHEER BT R o F
NENEBR=ZZ(ZT——F: =4)
ATZBemT -

2012 2011
—E-—_—F

—E——4F
HK$" 000
FHE T

HK$’ 000
FERT

other benefits in kind Hih B = 4,775 4,082
Contribution to retirement scheme RIKAE T8I 3K 157 148
4,932 4,230

The emoluments fell within the following bands: BN FATEE :

M < %6 &

Emolument bands
Nil — HK$1,000,000

£ 21,000,000/ 7T -
1,000,001 7T 21,500,000/ 7T 2 2

Number of individuals
AH
2012 2011
—E——F
HK$' 000
FAT

—E—_—F
HK$’ 000
THET

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/% 7T 22,500,000/ 7T 1
3 3

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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35 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 35
DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(c) No emoluments were paid to the directors or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office
during the year. No directors or the five highest paid
individuals waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year.

36 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 36

Reconciliation of profit for the year to cash generated from
operations as follows:

B R R AR 7

ETREAFAX (BRESME) (&)

(c) ARFANFARENEETRAERS
FALXME - (FARSIENEK
PO E N B S & B A 2 A% R o B Bk
E-FA BEEEIRBRHTA
ITHELAREAETMHNE -

REXBEEZERE
FRARMNEBLEEBAELER S HERD
T

2012 2011
—E--F —IT—F
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FER FAET
Profit for the year F R F 93,086 90,438
Adjustments for: R
— Income tax expense —FEBRAX 8,757 11,928
— Finance income —BERA (3.224) (1,581)
— Finance cost —REKAR 1,343 1,031
— Depreciation of property, plant — ¥ BERREBITE
and equipment 13,753 11,792
— Amortisation of land use rights — 5 AR 8E 137 135
— Loss/(gain) on disposals of —HEWE  BEREE
property, plant and equipment ZER (M) 4 (322)
— Share based compensation expenses — B9 5 R B 7 2 125 598
— Fair value gain on derivative —-EERT Az AFEKS
financial instruments (355) (490)
— Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets — & A F{EZZ ABZ 2%
at fair value through profit or loss BEZATFEBER (W) 718 (57)
— Impairment loss of available-for-sale —AHEENBEEREESE
financial assets 1,196 —
115,540 113,472
Changes in working capital: HBESE
— Inventories -FE (5,168) (32.172)
— Trade and other receivables — R B 5 AR R Ko HL At JE U IR (12,014) (16,414)
— Amount due from a jointly — B — R REH E B RIE
controlled entity (3,971) (2,030)
— Trade and other payables —ENE SRR R EAENRIEA 10,249 39,526
Cash generated from operations REXBEE 2R G 104,636 102,382

Annual Report 2011/125 %



158

Notes to the Financial Statements
B &R MI 5T

36 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (Continued)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

36 REXREEZRE (#)
HEYE BMERSBEABRERE:

comprise:

2012 2011
—E——F -—T——%
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FET FET
Net book value (Note 6) AREFE (MI5E6) 4 5

(Loss)/gain on disposals of property, HEWE - BERKE
plant and equipment 2 (BR) /M= (4) 322

Proceeds from disposal of property,

HEME BB RRE

plant and equipment

Z P18 50E - 327

37 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE
As at 31 March 2012, the Company had provided guarantees
in respect of banking facilities of its subsidiaries amounting
to approximately HK$349,839,000 (2011: HK$389,112,000).
The facilities utilised by the subsidiaries as at 31 March 2012
amounted to HK$50,554,000 (2011: HK$67,451,000).

38 COMMITMENTS
i) Operating lease commitments
At 31 March 2012, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments in respect of rented premises
under noncancellable operating leases as follows:

37

38

MBER
RZEBE——F=A=+—H ' KXAQA
REMNBARZRITEERHEAS R
349,839,000/ 7T (—Z —— 4 : 389,112,000
B ZER RZE—ZF=A=+—
H ZEWBRARACHAEEEAR
50,554,000/ 7T (= Z ——4F : 67,451,000/
JT) o

%

i) MERNRE
R-E——F=A=1+—H Xx&E
REEMERBE T RELLHEOR
RN < RIEHSABWT

Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E--fF —ET——%F
HKS$’ 000 HK$' 000
FTHER FHET
Not later than one year —F RN 2,261 2,324
Later than one year and not later —FREAFNA
than five years 97 -
2,358 2,324

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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39 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”). The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group
and its employees makes monthly contributions to the scheme
at 5% to 10% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans
for its employees in Mainland China. The Group contributes
approximately 7% to 12% of the basic salaries of its employees,
and has no further obligations for the actual payment of
pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond the annual
contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to retired
employees.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Macao, the Group
has arranged its Macao employees to join the government
provident fund scheme (the “Macao Scheme”). The Group and
its employees makes monthly contributions of MOP30 and
MOP15, respectively, per month to each employee to the Macao
Scheme, and had no further obligations for the actual payment
of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond the monthly
contributions.

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the aggregate amount of the
Group’s contributions to the aforementioned pension schemes
were approximately HK$3,427,000(2011: HK$2,512,000).

Bt RS R AR M5t

39 EERKEF

AEEEAEEBRETHLHEHBHMEA
B ([REESFE]) - RBEEFET
THEERNTE  ABUETAEE - B
BESHE - AEEHEEES D FIKERR
SR ES AT A M EER - €5
AREBAZE%ZET10% o — & N
REBMELE - THREME-

AR5 BiR IR A BRRE R A FOA G 2 $E -
REE R BIARE 2 B B MBI & BRI
SR - AREZEREEEATENINE
12%HR > BRFERETN  LEERN
EREHEREBHMZEMEE - BIRE
PERFEEERMERNEEXNEN 22
ARR IR

RIRRFIZRAIRAG - AEEEZHE
B EE2 MBI B8 (DR
g -AEENEREBANEGREED
Bll [A) R P 5t B R30I PI B R 15)RFT ¥
BrE ARSI YEERIMRAKSIR
K@ 2 HEMET

BE-_ZT——F=A=t1t—HIEEE " K
EB M EMRKSETEEL 2 BB ELD
/#3,427,0007%8 70 (— & ——4F : 2,512,000/
JT) °©
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40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 March 2012, 40.48% of the total issued shares of
the Company is owned by Superior View Inc., a company
incorporated in British Virgin Islands. 16.06% of the total issued
shares of the Company is owned by Billion Linkage Limited, a
company incorporated in British Virgin Islands. The ultimate
controlling parties of the Group are Dr Ng Chi Ho, a director
of the Company, and Ms Lee Wai Fun, wife of Dr Ng Chi Ho,
respectively.

(a) Transaction with related parties
In additional to amounts stated elsewhere, during the year,
the Group has the following related party transactions:

Sales of electronic products to

a jointly controlled entity HEEFEM
Management fee received from B — A 2k [)4% il

a jointly controlled entity ZERE
Management fee paid to a jointly
controlled entity

LERE

[a) — ] 2k R 42 5l &

40 BREALIRS
WRZZE——F=ZRA=+—H ' AQFE
BITHR D 4258 2 40.48% T R TE KB IR X B
B3 A Sz 2 A FSuperior View Inc. A ©
RAAIE BTN 4% .216.06% 9 B £ =
& 52 22 B B 3 it A 32 2 72 FBillion Linkage
Limited# B - AEBEHRLERA LTSRN A
ARREZRAZBLIRRATELZE
FEESLL-

(a) EEHEALIRS
SRREMANSEN  NEERER
RETTINEHEALRS

2012 2011
—E-_—F

—FT——F
HK$" 000
TET

HK$’ 000
TER

[ — ] Ak R 2 5 B §8 S A9

268,194 254,107
B
180 180
188 101

In the opinion of the Directors, the above transactions
were carried out in the normal course of the Group's
business and conducted at terms mutually agreed by the
respective parties.

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
£ & B &E B A R 2 A

EERR LARGNAKE B EEHB
2 AR T B E 2 RFETT °
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B &SRR MI 5T

40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 40 EBEALIRZ (B
(b) Key management compensation (b) EEEEE R M
Remuneration of key personnel management, including TEEEEBABZHFMEREDONAR
amounts paid to the Company’s directors and certain of AEERETREHFEEZZE KR
the highest paid employees, as disclosed in Note 35, is as BiE3sHE 58) - HIWT :
follows:

2012 2011
—E-C-F —E——%F
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FET FAET
Salaries and other short-term e hEMEHREERT
employee benefits 10,922 9,950
Post-employment benefits BB 12 12 7 605 571
11,527 10,521
(c) Year-end balances with related parties (c) RRBMEALZFREH
2012 AN
—B--f _T——%
HKS$’ 000 HK$' 000
FERT FET
Amount due from an associated JE Wi Bt & X R RRIR
company 267 —
Amount due from a jointly JE W — ) S R 42 1 B8 5K 1A
controlled entity 30,083 26,112
The terms of balances with related parties are disclosed in HEBEAL ZEHRFH - RHTFE10
Note 10 and 11. RINHEFE o

Annual Report 2011/125 %
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41 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
Subsequent to 31 March 2012, the Group has entered into the
following two transactions:

(a) The Group has entered into a sale and purchase agreement
on 4 May 2012 with Advanced Innovation Limited (“AIL")
to acquire the remaining 50% equity interest in Suga-
Al Limited, a jointly controlled entity at a consideration
of cash consideration of US$2,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$15,600,000); and a contingent consideration
of a maximum amount of US$500,000 (equivalent to
HK$3,875,000) depending on certain specified financial
performance of AlL for the 30 months ending October 2014.

According to HKFRS 3 “Business Combination”, the Group
is required to measure the cost of acquisition at the fair
value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. As of
the date of these consolidated financial statements, the
valuation of Suga-Al Limited was ongoing and has yet to
be finalised.

HKFRS 3 further requires the Group to recognise the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities that satisfy the recognition criteria at their fair
values at the acquisition date. Accordingly, the Group has
undertaken the purchase price allocation which involved
allocating the purchase consideration to the identifiable
assets and liabilities acquired so as to record those assets
and liabilities at their fair values at the acquisition date.
As of the date of these consolidated financial statements,
the purchase price allocation was ongoing and has yet to
be finalised. The historical carrying values of the acquired
assets and liabilities in their predecessor businesses at
the acquisition date are not disclosed, as the directors are
of the opinion that it is impracticable to disclose these
values as they are provisional and the Group is in the
process of assessing the carrying values of these assets
and liabilities.

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
= & BB &8 AR 23

4

HEHREE
R-ZE——FE=A=+—H#%  ~A&EZ
KT TRIER 5

a R—E——FRANH A5EHE
Advanced Innovation Limited ([AIL]) 5]
VYEEWH UWKEXRIESER
Suga-Al Limited B #850% IR A 4w - B
7B & IR 2 M E2,000,000% 7T (18
% 715,600,0008 ) : R BERE
B %500,0003 7T (48 5 723,875,000/
) HARTFALEE —T—NE+
AE=TEAMNAEBMBRIAME

BBEBEBNBHREENESREBE
Bt ANEBBEEFGKTEE T
TREETARMBENEREGER
RB|EHNATFENLEEZSBERK
BEENEAFTEMENR - BELR
BB BHE B 0 Suga-Al Limited 891
BINATEERE  NESREEE -

BEMBRELENEIR S ERAE
BRI B e A P EERE S
THAERERNAIHREE  BE
RSB EE - Bt - ARECEETT
BEENEK  ESNSBERESE
ERBEBNRRREEMRE - Z
HRWBEPN AT ECHEZETE
EMAE NERMEHRAY B
BEDRNACHRE  NATREHE
E o B EEMBENEE R BT
FICENELRAELERE  RE
REERR FEZFEEATIE
A7 AREBERIEE  MAKE
FAEFEZFEEMBENREE
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41 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
(Continued)

(b)

On 7 May 2012, the Group has entered into a share
transfer agreement with an individual, Mr. Ni Cheng-
Tao, to acquire 100% equity interest in Benefit Holding
Company Limited (“BHCL"). BHCL has 100% equity interest
in a PRC incorporated Company, Dongguan Benefit
Mechanicals Company Limited, which owns a parcel of
land in Donnguan, the PRC.

Total consideration of this transaction is RMB43,900,000
(equivalent to HK$54,900,000). The acquisition is expected
to be completed in June 2012.

B RS R AR M 7T

41 EERRBRSBEE)

(b)

RZE—Z_FHA+H KAEEH
—BEAGREBEETIRNEE
#h &% + LAY BEBenefit Holding Company
Limited ([ BHCL |) #J100%% 78 # %5 ©
BHCLEE R —RAEF B ML E A 7]

SSHT S8 E A IR X A #9100%A% A5
B MAREEHRBERZM—1BL
Hh o

B 5 e R AR (E A AR 43,900,000

7% (#8 % 7354,900,0005% 7T) © ¥8 23 4k
BEEEeN _ZT——F,NA%K -
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HFPBEHE

For the year ended 31 March 2012 82— Z——_F=A=+—HLFE
A summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated assets

and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out
below:

AREEE L ENREE SR REREAE
ERREHERIINT -

For the year ended 31 March
BE=-A=1t-HLFE

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
“TTNFE ZETENF T —ET——F CZB-ZF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TET TEL TEL TEL THT
Consolidated results Ge%E

Revenue W zs 707,711 812,034 959,866 1,191,058 1,241,997
Operating profit REE T 24,232 28,553 63,407 101,816 99,962
Profit before income tax Bk BT 15 55 A1 A 21,627 28,198 63,213 102,366 101,843
Income tax expense FrEfHFEX (940) (3,274) (6,708) (11,928) (8.757)

Profit attributable to the ARRIFEH
owners of the Company JE 1% 7 20,687 24,924 56,505 90,438 93,252

As at 31 March

R=A=1+-8

2008 2009 2010

“EENE —TTHhE _—EZ-TF
HK$' 000 HK$ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TET TET TEL FTEL TER

Consolidated assets and liabilities ZSEER & & (restated)

(51)
Property, plant and equipment Mm% BE R 65,195 62,761 105,892 113,367 116,678
Land use rights TR 4,458 4,399 4,267 4,225 4,159
Goodwill GRS 1,059 1,059 1,059 1,059 1,059
Interests in associates i ANC ey - - - - 1,733
Amount due from an associate A= NETE O] - - - - 267
Long-term loan receivable REEFEKRIE - - - - 16,250
Available-for-sale financial asset [t EB K EE - - - 4,150 2,679

Financial assets at fair value BERAFEZAERZ

through profit or loss — long term BT & E — R 1 - - - 11,481 6,993
Bonds investments — long term EHRRE-RE - - - 14,011 9,109
Deferred income tax assets BEMEHEE 3,106 2,179 2,301 1,888 3,665
Current assets MEBEE 327,571 329,723 402,758 487,590 504,869
Current liabilities nEaE (122,589) (109,412) (156,927) (200,039) (204,985)
Net current assets MBEEFE 204,982 220,311 245,831 287,551 299,884
Total assets less current liabilities ZEZERRHEE 278,800 290,709 359,350 437732 462,476
Long term borrowings RHBEE (10,909) (3,636) (26,163) (33,499) (22,463)
Finance lease liabilities MEREEE (42) = - - -
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEMGERAasE (2,853) (2,746) (2,579) (2,275) (2,807)
Total equity EEeE 264,996 284,327 330,608 401,958 437,206

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

EEBEB BB EFRA

Al
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